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THE COURT: Sclicitor.

ME. THOMPSON: Iﬁ.tbé.pleaSevxﬁg Court.

THE COURT: VYes, sir.

MR, THOMPSON: The State of South Cardlina veérsus
&bbdui'@mér'Emmanﬁel; He is pleading guilty today to
four Indictments: Indictment 2014-GS-46-01220 wherein
he was initiglly charged with murder. He is pleading

to voluntarily manslaughter on that c¢harge. BAnd he is

commission of a vielent crime. He is also pleading to
2014-68~46-01221, for armed robbery, and Indictment
2014~-GS-46-01222 for criminal conspiracy. He is
pleading guilty as charged to each of these
Indictments. BAll have been presented to the Grand
Jury. BAs part of the negotiation in this case, Your
Honor, we will be dismissing Some of the charges:

count two of Indictment 2014-GS-46-01221, listed as

"a", [or possession of a firearm during the commission

~of a violent crime and that is count two of the armed

rebbery Indictment. He will not be pleading guilty to
that charge. He will simply be pleading dguilty to the
armed robbeéry. And therefore we also be dismissing
charges 2014-GS~46-01880 for burglary first degree,

which was a direct Indictment; 2014-GS-46-01881 for
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attempted murder, which was also direct Indictment,
one =ight eight two, for attempted murder which we
dlso be dismissing which is one of the direct
Indictments.

Your Honor, the recommendation of the State in this
case is for the defendant is 20 to 40 years. S6 he
has a range of a minimum for 20, & maximum of forty
years. The defendant has a number of other pending
charges that are related to his charges that came out
of investigation into 715 FAM which is a group that
appedrs to be a gang and comes out of Rock Hill, as
part of the plea agreement we have agreed to the
principal of these charges but not to the final, to
the final Indietments that he will plead to in those
charge we have agreed as long as he works out a plea
with this regarding these, that they would run
concurrent to the séntence that he would receive under

the manslaughter and the armed robbery charges that he

is pleading today, as well we would lower all of the

attempted murder charges. I believe there is two or
three of these in that gréop to ABHAN charges and we
would alse be willing to work and dismiss some of
those however, the only thing I think pertinent as to
those charges is that they would run concurrent to

these as 1ong as he enters a plea. If he does not
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enter @ plea to the chatrge that we reducéd to thé way
we agreed the principal on those then woulﬁ-came»bask,
They would not hurt the rest of the his pleas today
would stand despite the fact that they weren't work
out if he did not plead to theése charges that were
reduced, But the State will make a good faith effort
of course in working those charges out with the
defendant prior to his sentencing on these and vwe
would ask the Court to defér sentencing on these.
charges today. T will give a copy to it the court

reporter, rather than reading off the warrant numbers.

I will give a copy to the put on the records, that the

defense can view before we hand them over 56 that they

agree those are the ones that we are dealing with, and

be made part of the record.

The victim's family is present, Your Honor. Of
course will not be addressing the Court today begause
we are simply going through at p...m.(.

THE COURT: Coinsgl is that your understanding of
the plea arrangements.

MR. BURNS: That is my understanding.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you. Please swear
the defendant for me,

ABBDUL OMAR EMMANUEL, called as a witness, haﬁiﬁg

been dily sworn by the clerk, was examined and
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testified as follows:

THE COURT: All right, sir, you areé name is a
Abbdul Omar Emmanuel?

" THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. You are in front of me
today on several charges. I am goind to go over the
charges with you to be sure than I understand them.
Let me, before I do that -—-

THE COURT: Solicitor, it is my understanding is
that he is not pleading to the possession of a weapon
during a violeht crimeé, is that right?

MR. THOMPSON: Heé is not pleading to one that
relates to the armed robbery. He is pleading to the
one relating to the wvoluntary manslaughter.

THE COURT: So he is pleading to caseé number
12204, is that correct?

ME. THOMPSON: That’'s right;

THE COURT: Now Mr. Emmanuel, I am going to go
over the charges with you to make sure you understand
the charges to which you are pleading. T will be
asking you some questions about those particular
charges. The first one that I ém going to discuss
with you is case number 2013-G$-46-12220, that charge

is for the offense of veoluntarily manslaughter. 1

will tell you that charge was indicted as a higher
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level offense. The State is accepting your plea to a

lesser level offense. Have you discussed that with
your lawyer?

THE. DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, I havé.

THE COURT: Do you understand what I mean by
pleading to a lesser included offense?

THE DEFENDANT: Yé&, sir.

THE COURT: T will inférm you that the higher
level offense was presentéed to the Grand Jury. It
resulted in a True Bill being issued by the Grand
Jury. So this case is properly before the Court as
far as the Grand Jufy proceedings are concerned.

‘The State is making a recommendation cencerning
sentencing. I will advise you throughout all of these
charges that recommendations are just that. I am sure
that the judge that will handle sentencing will give it

great deference and will ¢onsider that but the judge is |

not necessary bound by recommendations. Do you

understand. that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: So that means as I go through these
tharges I will be discussing with you the mazimum
sentences that are available iunder the law and will
advise you that the sentencing judge could sentence

you te that maximum if the judge choose to do so. Do
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you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes; sir.

THE COURT: All right. Now, for voluntarily
manslaughter I will advise you that this erime is
classified as a violent and most serious offence.
Now, when a crime is so classified it qualifies for
what is commonly known as oneé of your strikes under
the law. That means in the future if you were to be
found guilty of, or plead guilty to other similarly
classified crimes such as violent; serious, or most
serious offenses your plea in this case could be used
in those future cases to eﬁhance»er:makéamaxa?sevsré
of the sentences. It could result in a sentence of
l1ife imprisonment without ever having the oppostunity
te be parole.

De you understand that could happen in the future
depending on future convictions?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURTy All right, Now I would advise you
that this particular coffense carries a possible
sentence of not more than 30 years in prisen. Do yeu
understand that, sir?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Sir.

THE COURT: DNow, the next charge that I am going

to disciass with you is the possession ©f a weapon
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8.
d’ufr‘ing the commissien of a ¥violent ¢rime, That charge

has baeﬁvindi9£édmhy the Grand Jury so it is properly
before the Court. A true bill was issued in that
charge. I will tell you that particular charge
carries a possible sentence of up to five years
imprisonment. Déﬁ?ﬁ&»ﬁﬂdé&St&ﬁd-ﬁhat£isir?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, I do.

THE. COURT: ‘That is considered a no parole offense
as was the first charge that I discussed with you, and
I will tell you tn the issue of parole that you should
expect Lo serve every day that you are sentenced to.
Parole is not guaranteed to anyone. It is granted to
people. Do yow understand that?

THE- DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE CQURT: 8o thére can be no assures or
guarantees concerping any possible parole in your
case. Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, I do.

THE DEFENDANT: All right. Now that case also has
with it a recommendation frem the State. Again, I am
sure the judge will consider it, but the:iudQe is not
bound by that recommendation. All right. The next
charge that I am going to discuss with you is criminal
conspiracy. That is case number 2014~1222. That

charge has been présénted to the Grand Jury. It
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resulted in a True Bill being issued on the charge.
That carries a possible séntence of not more than five
years in prison or a fine of not more than $5,000. Do
you understand that, sir?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, siz.

THE COURTI: Again, it is subject to the same
recommendation by the State on sentencing. Again, the
judge will consider it but is not bound by that
recommgnﬁaticn.

The final case that I am going to discuss with you
this morning will be armed robbery, The case is
2014~1221. That particular charge carrisé,a possible
sentence of ten 10 years up to 30 years in prisen. It
has been indicted by the Grand Jury and a True Bill was
issued and it is properly before the Court. I will

tell you that crime is &lso classified as a violent and |

most serious offense. It also gualifies as a strike.

It could be used for sentence enhancement up to live
imprisonment without parole in the future. Do you
understand that as well?

THéi&EFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: It is also what is referred to a 1o
parole offense and I have explained to you that you
could not have any assurances congerning parole on

these charges. You should expect to serve the entire
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sentence. Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir,
THE COURT: WNow, you are here with your lawyer

this morning. Are you satisfieéd with your lawyers

assistance?

‘THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you meed to discuss anything any
further with him at this time?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir:

THE COURT: Is nhere.anything'tﬁat you feel he has
not doné foir you that he needs to do before we go
through this plead today?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sit.

THE COURT: Now, d¢ you suffer from ahy merntal,

physi¢al, netvous conditions, any cendition that would

effect your criminal liability or would effect your

ability to hafidle your plea today.

THE DEFENDANT: No, sit.

‘THE COURT: Have you taken or used any drugs,

medications, or other substances that might have an

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.
THE COURT: Mr: Emmaruel; do you know what you are
doing?

THE: DEFENDANT: VYes; sir.
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THE COURT: Do you understand what this hearing is
about today?
THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir,

THE COURT: All right. Now, as to the tharges

that I have gone over with you, you have the right to

plead sither guilty or not guilty to each of those

charges. How do you plead to thg charge?
THE DEFENDANT: Guilty.
THE COURT: ©On all four of the charges?
THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Counselor, I am sure you discussed

these pleas with your ¢lient, is that correct?

MR. BURNS: That is correct, Your Honor.
THE COURT: I would suspect that among the many
things you would have discussed with him you would

have discussed all the charges that he faces, the

_ppssible;penalties that are inVolVed( the alternatives:

that he might have had concerning his plea in this
case, any defenses he might have had to any of those
charges, as well as his rights under the constitution
as they relate to these charges as well. Is that some
of the things that you talked to Him about?
MR. BURNS: In great detail, yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Are you satisfied that he understood

the advice that you have given him?
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MR. BURNS: T believe he does, yes, Your Honor. |

THE COURT: Now, he has indicated to me that he
has made a decision to enter a guilty plea to these
four charges. Given your knowledge of this case and
the fedcts that the ‘State has in their possession, do
you agree with the decision that he has midde to offer
these pleas?

MR. BURNS: I do, Your Honor,

THE COURT: And has He had the ability to assist
you in his defense in this matrer?

MR, BURNS: Hg& hHas.

THE COURT: So you are comfortable with the pleas?

MR. BURNS: Yes, Your Hotor. “ ‘

THE COURT: A1l right. Now Mr. Emmanuel, my
information is that you are 19 yeéars of age. Is that.
correct?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE €OURT: How far did you go in your education?

THE DEFENDANT: Eleverith grade.

THE COURT: Did you efer-getAa GED?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Have you ever attempteéd to get a GED.

THE DEFENDANT: Ng, sir.

THE COURT: Are you married?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.
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‘THE COURT: D6 you haveé children?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Six.

THE .COURT: How many?

THE DEFENDANT: One.

THE COURT: What is the age of that child?

THE. DEFENDANT: Newborn.

THE COURT: Well, months? Less than a Vear.

THE: DEFENDANT: Yes, sir,

THE CQURT: Does that child live in your home if
you are not incarcéerated?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE. COURT: Now, when you were arrested: were you
employed anywhere?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: &nd where werée you working.

THE DEFENDANT: Employment place in Charlotte,
North Carolina.

THE COURT: Was that some type of service that

provided employees to people?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And where were you actually working?

THE DEFENDANT: In a warehouse.

THE COURT: All right. So you had a warehouse
Jjob?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

13
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anything to try to force wyou to offer the pleas that

you dre offéring te the Court?

"PHE DEFPENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Are you offering these pleas of your
own free will?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir:

THE COURT: Have you had sufficient time to
consider these cases?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE CGQURT: If you had wished to prepare a defense
to the tharges, to go to trial, ¢ould you have done
that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Has anyong made any promises,
guarantees or assurances to yow about any matter in
connection with these pleas at all?

THE DEFENDANT: ©No, §ir.

THE COURT: &ll right. Specifically; has anyone
promised -or guaranteed you anything ,c:onc:erning'; siuch
matters as pardon, parole, probation, early release,
length &f senterice, any promisess or guarantees about

any matter and specifically dny of those matters?
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THE DEFERDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: So, you aré not relying on any
promisees ér:assurances in making the pleas that you
are making?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir,

THE COURT: ©Now, when you offer a guilty plea on
any charge you are giving up your gonstitutional
rights. It is my responsible to be sure that you
understand what rights you have given up. I am going
to go over those rights with you :and I will ask you to
be sure that you understand each of the rights as we
go over these matters.

First of all, you have a cénstitutional right to
case comes to this Court. All of your cases have been
presented te the Grand Jury, and a True Bill was
issued. So they are properly before the Court. You
have a constituticnal right to a lawyer and you have
indicated to me that you are satisfied with your
lawyers services.

I assume you remain s® at this time, is that
correct?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes; sir.

THE COURT: 1In addition to those rights you have

the right to reguest or demand a jury trial. At a
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jury trial under the law you would be presumed to be
innocentt., That presumption would continue until such
time as the State proved ymur:guilt-énd there
obligation is to prove your ‘guilt to the jury by proof
beyord a reasohable doubt. You would not be required
to prové anything to a jury at that trial because you
would be presumed innocent.

Do you understand what I mean by a trial and how
that trial would be conducted?

THE DEFENDANTT Yes; I~do;

THE COURT: Now, in addition you would have the
right te have the elerk issue subpoenas to witnesses
to require the witnesses, favorable witnesses to you,
testify. You would have the right to confront or
question anyoﬁe who in fadt did testify at the trial.
During the trial you would be given the right to
présent any defénse you have to the charges and also
at the trial you would be given the opportunity tO'ﬁry’€
to suppress any and all evidence thé State may have
against you. That includes statements you may have
made prior to the time of the trial, ﬁt:eﬁery=st§ge
of a criminal proceeding you would have the right to
remain silent and at & trial if ybu choite to remﬁiﬁ‘

silent the judge conducting that trial is reguired to
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instruct the jury that your silence can not be used |

against you in matter whatsoever.

Now, Mr. Emmanuel, did you understand the rights I
just went over?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeés, sir.

‘THE COURT: Do you have any guestions about any of
those rights?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Do you realize if later on I accept
the plea that you offered that you would be giving up,
or waiving the rights that I just went over with yvou?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. |

THE COURT: Do you understand that -~ does that
fact in any way cause you to want to change or alter
the plea that you have entered?

‘THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: So you are still pleading guilty at
this tinme?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes; sir. I am.

THE COURT: Are you offering that plea because you
are in fact guilty of the charges that you are
pleading too.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir,

THE COURT: I am going to ask the solicitor fo go

over the facts with nme in this matter at this timé., I
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want you to listen to what he has to say becausé I an

geing to ask you about what he has told me in just a
moment.
THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

MR, THOMPSON: If it please the Court. Your

Honor, this occurred on January 10th of this year here

York County. It happened just before two o'clock in
the afterncon. The co-defendants in the case,
Renaissance Hcademy school here in Reck Hill. That
day Mr. White approach Logan Hughes who is a friend of
theirs and a fellow classmate there at Renaissance and
asked him if he knew where he could by some marijuana.
Offered Logan some money if he would help him find
someodne to sell him some. 5S¢ Logan tdlked to some of
his friends and found out a place where he could go
and worked out & way to provide transportation whexe
he would drive5ﬁr,'White'ander;'Buxris to get the
marijuana.

In the course of doing that Mr. White hHad a
telephone call with the defendant here and in that
gall planned to stop &nd pick up the deféndant, So

they actually had three people going with Mr. Hughes.

And at that time was referring to the defendant not by

his name bit 48 Jay, dnd 80 Logan Hughes did not kriow
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this deféndant. He knew the other two and he didn't
know who Jay was, but he cbviously knew from Mr. White
it was a friend of his who warted to come and buy
marijuana also. So they drove where he was
instructed, Mr. Hughes did. Where a young lady
dropped off the defendant in a vehicle that ultimately
the police were able to identify and go .and speak with
this young lady. She admitted that, yes, she had
dropped the defendant off and of course she was not in
the trouble with that., She didn't realize what she
was dolng other than just giving-him'a ride, But
dropped him off where Logsan Hughes picked him up and
then the four of them went together to ' Cedar
Grove Lane in Rock Hill and when they -- as they got-

there not everyone went inside right away. As a

matter of fact Mr. White stayed in the car initially

trying to get Mr. Hughes to turn on the radio. Put
the key in to turn it on to play a soﬁg, but obviously
Mr. Hughes had to go up to the House to introduce
these folks and get the deal done. And as he did,
went up to the house whén the door was opened this
defendant and Mr. Burris went inside and immediately
upon going inside the defendant here, Mr, Abbdul

as he went into the door. He pointed it at the young
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men that were inside. :

The~mic£im;&hsthis.C&S&;W&S aéiually sitting down
and. had: & and sawed off shotgun with a pistol grip in
his lap which was Jjust kind of laying facing a little
bit down atcaidiﬁg'td?wﬁat the witnesses $aid. He
yideo gatte eontrallet in bne hand thak he was trying
to pléy-a video game with and he was on the phone with
his girlfriend in the other.

The defendant immediately demanded that Mr. Hughes

move out of his way. There was some words said at

that point and he fired Ris gun three times striking

the vietim in the chest .and in the leg. &And the chest

wound unfortunately was fatal almest immediately. He

ambulance but was dead basically by the timé he

arrived at PMC. Theéré wereé other young mep ind the
house &t the time who were standing in there. One was
sleeping on the couch, ancther one who was actually

the one& that was gaingftb"db*tﬁé%ﬁxﬂg-deai'was there.
They bégan to run oGt the back of the house. Abbdul
Fmmanuel ordered Mr. Hughes tc.ﬁun.out.after then.

Mr. Hughes ran out after them, but he didn't. realizé
all this was going to happen so he wan out and

detudlly hid wi

defendant at that point in time.
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Mr. Burris went back to the car and Mr. White went

back teo the car. As they attempted to drive away
without Mr. Hughes at this point, they apparently saw
Mr. Hughes. He got out, the defendant did, Abbdul
Emmanuel, He fired shots at Mr, Hughes and Rafeal
Renta who was the other voung man who was in the house
and had run out. They agaln took off to get away from

him. He got back in to Mr. Hughés's cars and they

drove off in that SUV at that point.

Mr. Hughes got in with Rafeal Renta and the two of
them went to another aréa of town where he dropped off
Mr. Hughes who went ¢o his house. 7Told his mother
what had happened. His mother called the pelice and
then the police went and interviewed them so that he
could tell them about Mr. Burris and Mr. White and
this guy name Jay and what had happened; 80 he came
forward right away té tell what had occurred,

This defendant on the othéer hand with his
co-defendant ran off. What they actually stole from
the residence was the sawed off shotgun. Witnesses
who live in the npeighborhood saw the defendant run
out. They saw the youhy man run out having a pistel
in one hand and sawed offrshotgun;inrthe other. He
ran and got into the wehicle and they also witnessed

that he shot again at the two young men as they drove
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away and ulﬁima@ely stopped that car. They parked it,

got out and ran through 4n area of town and by & creek
where they through the-Shstgun-dd%@. When the canine
went through that aréa they were able to recover that
shotgun and were able to determine that they-Were‘in 
the area where these young man lived. |
Through the police investigation and dealing with
Mr. White and Mg. Burris they finally turned
themselwves in and took a couple of days for that to
happen before it occurred: ©Ouring the course of that
they actually brought Mr. Emmarivel in on andther
warrdnts, not reéalizing that he was involved in the
murder itself, because the police at this time were
looking for a Jay or Job, so they weré looking for
anyone who had that kind ¢f nickdame. Bubt as they
began to realize ultimately that they weren't having
any luck in getting phﬁtoﬂliﬂeups_andzanyonékgetting
picked out. They finally started putting other people
who associated with these other two young men in photo
lineups and when they did Emmanuel was placed in the
line-up and Rafeal Renta identified him as one of the
perpetrators as well, Mf. Logan Hughes, while they
didn't identify him one hundred percent said I'm
pretty sure that's him. T Just @ahﬁﬁ say for one

nundred percent and pointed him out. So at that point
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they began look for him and that's when they found if

the young lady who had dropped him off. She
identified him as well, &s the person she had dropped

off and everything started coming together. The three

of them had actually gone to Charlotte later that

'evening, The defendant's mother and sister assisted
them in finding a place to hide in Charlotte for the
fime that think were out. But ultimately the
defendant also turned himself in, again because he was
released on bond on the first set of charges. Turned
himself in again the next day and he is now facing
these charges,

Those are the basic facts Your Honor. Of course we
do have some forensic evidence as well that puts a

fingerpiiﬁt of Mr., Burris ©on the door as well as the

ballistics, While the gun itself was never récovered

it was shown that the three bullets that were fired in
the house, one recovered from the chair, two from the |
victin’s body all matched together and were shot from
the same firearm which is purported to be a 45 caliber
which SLED said that'd what it would come from. They
also were able to said that by the groeoves on the

marks on the bullets themselves it would have been a
hi-point firearm which is what not only the

co-gdefaendants but one of the witnesses who saw the




|20

22

25

10

.12
13
4
ELS
16
17[
igxa'

19

21

24y
everit, who was one the victims, identified the pistol

that he saw was & hi-point that was being fired at
him. rﬁradditiOh the thrée shell cases that recovered
matched each other and was also fired from the same
pistel, the 45 caliber:

Those are the the basic facts, Your Honor, that we
have, but both tHe co-deferndants; White and Burris
have since coopérated and'they=él§§ identified the
defendant as being the perpetrator of firing the gun
during the actual robbery itself.

THE COURT: Thank you, sirs

Mr. Emhanuel, you were were present. Did you hear |

what the solicitor told me about the facts?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, I did.

THE COURT: Did you understand what he said?

THE. DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: 1Is that information correct?

THE OCEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE EOURT: Now, have you beeaftIUthfﬁl.with‘me
today?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeslxsir;

THE COURT:Y Did ényﬁﬁéztefl'ydgzhﬁw to respond to.
:any'oiﬂmy:questions?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Thé answers that yeu have given ne
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have ‘they been your own answers?

THE: DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Is thete any part of what you and I
have discussed today that you would like to reconsider
or change in your respense that you have given to my
questions.

THE DEFENDANT: N¢, 8ir.

THE COURT: S0 you are still offering a guilty

plea te all the charges before me today?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. I will let. the record
refleet that I am going to accept the pleas. It is my
finding that it has been freély and veluntarily given.
The defendant is thé aware of the charges that are
before the Court. He is aware of possibleé penalties.
He has had the advice of counsel that he is satisfied
with. I find that there are facts sufficient that
have been admitted that justify the acceptance of the
pleas,

Now Mr. Emmanuel, T am going to accept your plea
today: I am not sentencing you toeday. I will defer
sentencing at this peint in time, I will advise you
that I am not retaining jurisdistion over the
sentencing of your case, That ¢an be done by any

sitting Circuit Judge.
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Thank you, very much gentleman.
MR. THOMPSON: Thank you, Your Heror.
MR. BURNS: Thank you.

* * %

26.
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MR. EPTING: May it please the court. Your
Honor, I am Chris Epting on behalf of the State.

Before the Court today is Abbdul Omar Emmanuel
with his appointed defense counsel, Tyler Burns with
the York County Bar.

It is my understanding Mr. Emmanuel wishes to
enter a plea of guilty to a number of charges and
also have a sentencing heard on charges he has
already plead to.

Your Honor, for the record keeping purposes Mr.
Emmanuel has already plead guilty to four charges;
one count of voluntarily manslaughter, one count of
possession of a weapon during the commission of a
crime of violence, one count of armed robbery, and
one count of criminal conspiracy. Those are
Indictments respectfully 14-GS-46-1220, 1220A, 1221
and 1222. He plead guilty to those in July with a
negotiated sentence of a minimum of 20 years and a
maximum of 40 years.

Mr. Emmanuel it is my understanding is going to

enter a plea of guilty to a number of other charges

_ present here today. We've agreed to a negotiated

sentence that any sentence he receives today would be
concurrent to what sentence he will receive on the

remaining sentence. For the purposes of the record,
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it is our understanding he is pleading guilt today to
a number of charges constituting to what we call the
Flint Street Incident. Those are Indictments
14-2876, 2876A, 2884 and 2885, respectfully attempted
murder reduced to assault and battery of a high and
aggravated nature, one count of use of a weapon
during the commission of a violent crime, one count
of unlawful carrying a pistol, one count of criminal
conspiracy. He is pleading guilty to a separate
incident. One charge of pointing and presenting off
of Indictment many 2014-GS-46-01223; and he's
pleading to an additional charge on a separate
incident, a drive-by shooting. What we named to be
the Lige Street incident. Criminal conspiracy
charge, 2014-GS-46-01503.

By way of plea we have agreed to dismiss his
remaining charge and again for purposes of the
record, the charges we are dismissing are the Tom
Street Incident, 2014-GS-46-01530, 1531, 1532, 1533
and also an Incident at Walnut Street. Indictment
number -- warrant numbers 2014A4620304122,
2014A4620304123. Your Honor, I believe that the
State has provided the Court prior to this plea with
a transcript of the plea.

THE COURT: I haven't read that.
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MR. EPTING: We would ask that be made part of the
record.

THE COURT: All right. Let me just ask you the
cases that you said he has previously plead to, the
manslaughter, possession of a weapon during the violent
crime, armed robbery and conspiracy, are Indictments
1220 through 1222, is that right? |

MR. EPTING: That is correct Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay, and those are the cases that
were plead in front of Judge Couch?

MR. EPTING: That is correct.

THE COURT: All right. Do you agree that those
are -- that he has already plead to those? The only
reason I ask is because there is no signature on them.

COURT CLERK: I have it.

THE COURT: You got the other one, okay. That is
fine.

Okay. All right. Has he been sworn?

ABBDUL OMAR EMMANUEL, called as a witness, having

been duly sworn by the clerk, was examined and testified

as follows:c.
THE COURT: All right, Mr. Emmanuel in last 24

hours have you had any drugs, alcohol or medication?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Had have you ever been treated for
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substance abuse or mental illness?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: All right. You are up here on a
number of Indictments today. Aside from the one which
you previous entered a plea, some of which have not been
presented to the Grand Jury. I want you to know you
have an absolutely right to require the State to present
those cases to the Grand Jury where they would have to
prove more probably then not that a crime was committed
and you are the one that did it. Do you want to give
that right up which would let you go forward on those
Indictments today?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. The first one of those
Indictments, 2014-2876 alleges you did in count one,
York County, January 12, 2014 unlawfully seized,
confined, kidnap, abducted, or carry away Atavious
(phonetics) Truesdale.

Solicitor, counsel, come up here for a second.

(WHEREUPON, there was an off the record discussion
held at the bench.)

THE COURT: Thank you, very much.

All right. We have a clerical issue with that
Indictment so we will move forward to 2014-1503 and that

alleges you did in York County-on November 19, 2013
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willfully, knowingly, feloniously, unite, combine,
conspire, confederate, agree or have tacit‘understanding
with Robert Johnson for the purpose of committing
attempted murder or discharging a firearm into an

occupied dwelling. That carries five years. Do you

understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, I do.

THE COURT: You are also [hear|here] or 2014-2885
and it alleges that you did January 9, 2014 in York
County, willfully, knowingly, and feloniously, unite,
combine, conspire, confederate, agree or have tacit
understanding with Robert Johnson and/or Mark Glovef or
Qua'Mek White for the purpose of committing the crime of
assault and/or other criminal offenses and that's
another five years. Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: You are also here on 2014-2876.
Excuse me, 2884, And it alleges that you did in York
County on or about January 9, 2014 unlawfully possess a
handgun and that carries up to a year in prison.n Do you
understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. Now, with respect to
these other offenses; voluntarily manslaughter,

possession of a weapon during the commission of a
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violent offense, armed robbery and conspiracy, do you

have any questions about those previous entéred guilty
plea.

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: All right. Well, understanding the
nature of the charges against you and the maximum
possible punishment, how do you want to plead?

THE DEFENDANT: Guilty, sir.

THE COURT: Is that your free and voluntarily
choice?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you understand that you have an
absolute constitutional right to a trial by jury where
you would be presumed to be innocent unless and until
the State could prove you guilty beyond any reasonable
doubt of each and every element of each offense that you
were charged with. You have a right to confront and
cross examine the witnesées and the evidence put up
against you by the State. You would have a right to use
the subpoena power of the State to compel the Court all
relevant and competent evidence in your own defense, or
you can remain silent. Your silence can ﬁever be held
against you and you can not be compelled to incriminate
yourself. Do you understand all those rights?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, I do.
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THE COURT: I don't know if you made a statement
in this case or I don't know if there was any evidence
that has been collected which you might contest the
seizure of but if you enter this plea and I accept this
plea then you are giving up your right to challénge the
constitutional propriety of either your statement, if
there was one and I don't know even know, or any
evidence that was seized in this case. Do you
understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. Undefstanding all those
rights do you want to give those up to enter this plea?

THE DEFENDANT:‘ Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Are you guilty?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Are you totally and completely
satisfied with the representation of your attorney?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, I am.

THE COURT: Do you have any complaints that you
would like to make about the way you have been treated
in this case?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: All right. Have you had enqugh time

to and review all the evidence that the State has

against you?
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THE DEFENDANT:- Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. I want to wait until I
get that the other Indictment before we go any further,
so.le£ me ask counsel to approach one more time.

(WHEREUPON, there was an off the record
discussion held at the bench.)

THE COURT: All right. Now, Mr. Emmanuel out of
abundance of caution I will ask Mr. Thompson to review
the facts of the previous entered guilty plea so I am
fully familiar with that.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes,.sir.

MR. THOMPSON: If it please the Court, Your Honor.
This occurred on December 10th of this year here in York
County in the City of Rock Hill. One of the key
witnesses in this case, Logan Hughes, went to school
with two of co-defendants that were in this case, -
Maurice Burris and Dontavion White. And he had been
speaking with Mr. White that afternoon in school. Mr.
White asked him.where he could buy marijuana and
ultimately offered him ten dollars if he could take him
to a place where he could get some marijuana. So Logan
Hughes agreed to do that. Logan Hughes got with Mr.
White when school ended. Also got with Mr. Burris who
are both friends of Mr. Hughes and had been. They had

gone to school together since they were very small. But
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as they started going to the place where they were going

to pick up the marijuana Mr. White explained to Logan

that the person who was actually going to pay for it he
needed to call and they needed to pick him up as well.
At that point he called this defendant, Abbdul Emmanuel,
but at that point also started calling him "J" which is
not a normal nickname that he goes by. Doesn't normally
had, which ends up showing that they had planned to
commit some sort of robbery at this point. He ended up
directing Logan Hughes to where to pick up this guy "J".
They went to the defendant's house, on Pebble Street in
Rock Hill, and when they went there the defendant got
out of a Mercedes SUV that another person was driving,
Chasity Jordan and there was another young man in that
car as well, and at Laquan Johnson who both ultimately
gave information to the police that it was Abbdul
Emmauel that they dropped off. That he then got into
the other vehicle which was Logan Hughes's SUV and that
the othe; two gentleman were in there, White and Burris
were in there with him.

They then pfoceeded on to Cedar Grove where they
went to purchase the marijuana._ Mr. White actually
stayed in the car during the time of the robbery itself.
However, Mr. Burris, this defendant, and Logan Hughes

all got out and went into the the house because Logan of
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12
course the one that was going to facilitate the actuél
deal.

It appears from the evidence we have that Logan
Hughes had no idea that something bad as far as a
shooting or robbery was about to occur. He simply
thought he was facilitating someone buying marijuana.
However when they got to the door immediately the
defendant pulled a gun as he went in to the door.
Immediately according to Logan Hughes told Logan to move
out of his way and told Logan to stand still. He yelled
at the victim, Michael Gibbens who was 25. Michael
Gibbens wasn't actually the person who was selling drugs
it Rafael Renfa who was also in the room at the time,
and with other young man was Zachery Chester who was
asleep at the time they initially came in to the room.
He started firing on the victim. The victim was sitting
in a la-Z-boy recliner. He had a sawed-off shotgun that
was actually on his lap and he was not holding it. He
had in one hand a controller that he was playing video
games with and in the other hand he had cell phone where
he was actually speaking to his girlfriend at the time.
The girlfriend recalls that suddenly she heard shots.
That he was no longer speaking and she heard a lot of
noise going on and that she heard somecone yell in her

quote "give me your shit bro. Give me your load, bro"
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and of course that is referring to the marijuana at that
point.

Rafeal Renta ran out of the hodse through the back
door at that time. The victim unfortunately had been
shot in the the upper abdomen, lower chest and that was
a fatal wound. As well he had been shot in the leg and
there was a shot ‘that went into the La-Z-boy recliner.
SLED tested all of those. They all are 45 calibers that
came back to the same weapon and it would have been a.
high point semi-automatic pistol which also one of the
people in the house were able to identify the pistol as

the defendant's high point because they were familiar

~with high point weapons.

During the course of that the defendant then did
not make off with any marijuana, however he did grab the
sawed~off shotgun and run out of the residence with the
sawed-off shotgun and a pistol in the other. One of the
neighbors actually saw him come out and described that
to the police and I believe in a 911 recording. Thaﬁ
was happening at that point in time. 1In addition, when
he had told Logan Hughes to go out after the guy who had
run out the back door. So logan ran out of the back
door and actually started trying to hide with Rafael
Renta in the back. The defendant got back into the car.

J
Mr. Burris got back into the car. The police were able
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to get Mr. Burris's fingerprint off the front door which
linked him more solidly into the crime as well. As they
started to take off Logan Hughes was yelling about them
stealing his car. Taking his car at that time. He was
then fired upon by the defendant from the vehicle. The
defendant got out of the vehicle and literally ran down
the street a little bit and shot at less once or twice
at Rafael Renta and Logan Hughes again as they tried to-
then run away and get away from the defendant. The
defendant got back in to the vehicle. They went to
another street right around number 8 Serene Street in
Rock Hill where they just jumped out of the vehicle,

left all the doors open and began running. The dog
tracked from that vehicle to the river right near by,
the little stream right near by. It started to rain at

this point. That's where they recover the sawed-off

~shotgun lying right next to the water as well as it

tracked back to the neighborhood where the defendant
lived and then the dog ultimately lost its scent.

The defendant was idéntified by Rafael Renta in a
photo line-up. 1In addition, both his co-defendants
cooperated. Mr. Burris and Mr. White ultimately gave a
statement as to what the defendant had done and his
involvement in it as well as their involvement. Right

after the actual incident occurred Logan Hughes received
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a call on his cell phone from unknown number. It was
the defendant that made that ééll. We were able to
connect that to the cell records and the defendant told
them the general area where to find his car. He also
told him he knew where he lived, he knew where his
girlfriend lived and he better not give any names of any
people involved in this or he would come after them, so
he issued a threat to Logan Hugbes at that point in
time.

The defendant after that ran along with his
co-defendants. His mother and sister assisted all of
them in escaping out of Rock Hill having a place to stay
in Charlotte. Ultimately as the police came closer in
Charlotte they assisted them ~-- they actually run out
the back door and gave them transportation from there to
leave because the police were coming to the front at
that point and had conducted surveillance on the place.
Ultimately the defendant did finally turn himself in but
it took the police a while to figure out that it was
this defendant that was involved because they had a
nickname "J" and at that point all of the defendants
missing only knew from Logan Hughes was that the two
guys that he knew and that he gave their names, Mr.
Burris and Mr. White, and so the police were initially

looking for them. However as they continued their

¢
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investigation and found out that the young lady who
dropped the defendant off, they discovered that on the
ldth I believe in January. Took that information. Got
an arrest warrant for the defendant and he later turned
himself in later in the day on the 14th. So he was on
the run on the other charges and this charge during the
pfior time from the 10th -- I'm sorry around the 11th to
the 14th. He had actually turned himself in on some of
the other charges. Started giving statements to the
police. Was let out on the bond and they realized he
was part of this murder.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you very much.

MR. THOMPSON: There is one thing I would hand up
to the Court, State's Exhibit Number Five as part of the
Discovery. It is simply a picture of the house there on
Cedar Grove and it's simply to point out that that
residence is close by a number of other residences.‘It's
a neighborhood with a lot of close houses so the
shooting occurred in this neighborhood with a lot of
people very close to what was happening.

THE COURT: Okay. Ail right, thank you very
much. I understand we got the clerical error fixed.

MR. EPTING: We do, Your Hoﬁor. I apologize.

THE COURT: That's all right.

Now; let's go through this other Indictment. This
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is a two-count Indictment. It's 2014-2876, and 2876A.
Count one is for attempted murder and it alleges you did
in York County on or about Janua;y 12, 2014 feloniously
willfully with malice of forethought attempt to murder
one Artevius Truesdale (phonetics) by shooting at him
with a handgun. Tendering a plea I believe to assault
and battery of a high and aggra?ated nature which
carries up to 20 years in prison. This is a violenf
offense which effects parole eligibility. This is a
serious offense. So you if you get convicted for three
or more serious offenses you are eligible for life
imprisonment without parole; Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Count two alleges you did in York
County on or about January 12, 2014 while committing the
crime of attempted murder, a crime of violence, you had
in your possession or took in your possession a gun and
that carries up to five years. Do you understand thét.

THE DEFENDANT: VYes, sir.

THE COURT: So understanding the nature of those -
chafges and the maximum punishment‘how much do you want
to plead to those charges?

THE DEFENDANT: Guilty.

THE COURT: Is that your free and voluntarily

decision?
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THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And do you understand you have the
right to a jury trial on that case?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, I do.

THE COURT: Do you understand all tﬂe rights I
previously enumerated to you?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And do you want to give those rights
up to enter this plea?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: And Are you guilty of the charges in
this Indictment?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And you are still satisfied with your
lawyer?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. Now listen while the
State tells us the facts of these cases.

MR. EPTING: Thank you. Your Honor, this incident
occurred January of this year on Flint Street. Offiéers
received a call from a resident in that area who told
officers that an individual had run in to [their|there]
house kind of in a blind panic. That she seen sohebody
who was later identified as Abbdul Emmanuel chasing him.

He had a gﬁn in his hand and that she heard some shots
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fired.

Your Honor, we believe that this case came to
trial we would be able to present evidence that the
defendant and the victim.in this case, Mr. Truesdale,
got in to some kind of altercation. That Mr. Truesdale
attempted to flee from Mr. Emmanuel chased him and fired
a weapon sevéral times eventually chasing.Mr. Truesdale
into that resident's house.

THE COURT: Okay. All right, is that true and
correct?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right.

Ms. Holland: Thank you, Your Honor. Jessica
Holland just for the record. I handled two cases for
Mr. -- three cases for Mr. Emmanuel. Two of ﬁhose were
conspiracy charges related to the shootings that
occurred on the rival gang members. One of then is
being dismissed, but that is the shooting that occurred
at Walnut Street on November 18, 2013. That;s the
home of Marcius Thompson who is a member of rival gang
call 901 KOB. The defendant gave a»statement admitting

his involvement with his co-defendant that they fired at
that residence. He also stated that a gun that was
already in the evidence of Rock Hill Police Department

had been used and officers were able to confirm that
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through ballistics.

The second conspiracy charge occurred the next
day. That was shooting that occurred at Lige
Street. That's the home of Markel Ivre (phonetics) a
rival gang member. The defendant and the other
individuals went to that home and fired at that home and
the bullet actually penetrated the home. It went into
the home.

The final is the pointing and presenting charge
which occurred shortly thereafter on November 27 of 2013
at a gas station, 1697 Saluda Street in Rock Hill, South
Carolina. The defendant pointed a firearm at two
individuals who he had previously had a confrontation
with.

THE COURT: All right, thank you very much. Is
all that true and correct.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, you're shaking your head
no. Is it true, substantially true and correct?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Does he have a
criminal history.

MR. EPTING: Yes, and I ask to present that
information until after we hear from the vietims.

THE COURT: All right. How about jail days? You
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all figure that out.

MR. EPTING: I believe it's 257,

MS. HOLLAND: 257 days, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. I will be happy to hear
froﬁ the victims.

MR. EPTING: This is is the victim in the
manslaughter case, the mother of the victim in the
manslaughter case. She would like to come up and
address the Court, and in addition to that Your Honor,
afterwards we have an officer from Rock Hill Police
Department that would like to address the Court as well.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Thank you, very
much. Yes, ma'am.

MS. GIDDENS: How you doing? I would just like to
say -- I would like to first start out by saying I'm
sorry you are losing your son too, but be Qrateful you
can you still talk to him and see him because after
trying to deal with this for the last eight months I
have not yet learned how to deal with like not getting
my daily texts from him checking on me and telling me he
loves me. It is the most painful feelﬁng I have ever
felt. All this senseless violence has now left two
babies to grow up without their fathers. My first
grandson was born on June the third and now he will

never know his father. Only the memories I can give him
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of my sweet baby boy, like how he was the most
thoughtful man I ever met. Giving you the shirt off his
back if you needed it or always putting his needs of
others before him. He meet know strangers and friended
all people he met. Never judged anyone or hold it
against them their mistakes. He had many, many people
that loved him.

I will never be the same, I will never the same
again. This has impacted every part of my life.
Nothing will ever be the same and the impact it has made
on my life is unreal. I spoke with Michael 30 minutes
before the shooting to inform him he had a job working
with me the next day. He was so excited to be going to
work with me. I told him I would be by in a couple of
hours to get him and then the phone call came. I oniy
wish I would have known this was the last time I would
have ever talked to him because I was very proud of him,
the man and he was becoming and still wish every night
that I could have told him. That my sweet son is gone
now, I miss him so badly and I only hope that now I can
try and put this behind me and start to heal and try to
geﬁ my life back to normal or as close as normal as I
possible can.

Thank you.

THE COURT: Yes, ma'am. Thank you, very much.
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MR. EPTING: Your Honor, for the Rock Hill Police
Department, Major Steve Parker.

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

MR. PARKER: Your Honor, my name is Steve Parker
with the Rock Hill Police Department. I'm a major over
field services division which is investigations and
patrol. From the side of law enforcement what we want
you to know that Mr. Abbdul Emmanuel is one of the most
violent people Rock Hill City has ever seen. And since
he has been in prison we have seen a huge difference, a
dramatic change in Rock Hill as far as drive by
shooting. We were having them occur once and twice a
week where now we're seeing that we might go weeks at
time without a drive-by shooting. The difference in only
having one victim here which is a huge tragedy compared
to it could be 10 to 20 because he wasn't a good
shooter.

We ask you, Your Honor, to please go the maximum
sentence that you can because we feel that he is

definitely someone that society does not need back in it

as soon as possible.

THE COURT: All right, thank you sir.
MR. EPTING: If it please the Court four printed
photographs that have been marked State's Exhibit 1

through 4. These were copied and printed off the
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defendant's facebook page. Obviously the first
photograph there shows him wearing the 715 t-shirt which
is the 715 family is the name of the gang. The other
ones are -- he's showing gang symbols and wearing biue
bandéna, showing his colors around his neck and then the
final photograph he is holding a.pistol, a high point
pistol may -- we can't obviously say whether it was the
same one used i some of these crimes, but it certainly
is the same model. |

Your Honor, asked a moment ago about his record
and I wanted to finish with that.

THE COURT: VYes, sir.

MR. EPTING: I think it's important for Your Honor'
to understand not just his adult record because of the
age of 20 he's a young man. He really hasn't had time
to amass much in the way of an adult record. But at the
age of 13 is when he started in Family Court on November
27 of 2007 he was charged with disturbing schools énd
was convicted on that charge. In 2008 he was convicted
of use a vehicle without owners consent and driving
without a license. He was sent to R&E for an evaluation
which at that age is unusual, but given his behavior and
what he had done up to that point Judge Guess determined
that was appropriate and was sentenced, committed for a

period of time by Judge Guess.
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In April of 2008 two counts of disturbing schools
and use of a vehicle without owner's consent. He was
sent to the Upstate evaluation center by Judge Guess.
Placed on probation afterwards for six months, given two
suspended weekends, cobperate with Catawba Family
Center, cooperate with the teen help center mentoring
program, complete 20 hours of community service with
credit for participation in the the teen health service,
cooperate with an éuxiliary probation officer and they
recommended a psycho-educational assessment. That was
Judge Henry Woods.

Nonetheless, two months later after receiving that
sentencé he was convicted of receiving stolen goods and
strong armed robbery. He was given a ninety day
determinant sentence after another evaluation, placed
on probation . until the age of 16. Restitution ﬁéld in
abeyance and ordered today comply with all the terms of
prior order by Judge Woods.

In April of 2009 -- apd thereggre peribds of time
here obviously where he is’incércerated with DJJ --
disorderly conduct. Apparently a fight took place at
school and an school official attempted to break the
fight up and he assaulted the school official. He was
again sent to the Upstate Evaluation Center, 90 day

determinant sentence. Was released to placement.
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Another Upstate Evaluation Center was done. R&E
evaluation was done in May of 2010. Convicted of no
driver's license. Sent to Upstate Evaluation Center.
Returned to Court for final disposition. And then
finally in July 27th of 2010 his final stint in juvenile
court, a burglary second conviction.

As an adult shortly thereafter, he started in
2011, was charged with and convicted. These
convictions, stemmed from an incident that took place at
the end of 2011 but the was convicted in April of 2012;
assault and battery by a mob, bodily injur&, third
degree and assault and battery 2nd degree and received
YOA sentences on those offenses for which he remained in
jail from the conviction date of April 24, 2012 and was
not released until end of June of 2013. So he spent a
significant amount of time on that. And then it was
then just months after release from his YOA, active YOA
sentence that he began getting into the shootings es
that you heard Miss Holland describe in November 2013.

.Your Honor, I am holding in my hand this is his

Family Court file. Judges Woods, Wylie, Guess, Guyton,
Gibbons, all these judges and all the experts and
professionals that were assigned to help this young man
when he was a juvenile and try to turn him around and

get him on the right road, a lot of effort was taken.
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Despite everything that they did during this time period
he still as soon as he aged out of the juvenile system
began engaging in violent conduct culminating in a
series of shootings throughout Rock Hill that terrorized
neighborhoods and ultimately resulted in the death of
this woman's son. I hat to say it about anybody who is
‘only 20 years old, but I do not believe there is a
redeeming character in this man. I do not believe there
is any hope that he will ever change the way he behaves
and the only way that our community can be kept safe is
for him to go to jail for the full extent that he is
allowed which is 40 years without parole and the
solicitor would ask for a 40—yeaf sentencé in tHis
matter.

THE COURT: "All right. Thank you. All right, Mr.
Burns. |

MR. BURNS: Thank you, Your Honor. If it please
the Court.

Your Honor hearing that too I would kind of agree
high sentence would be in order, but that case is a lot-
like a pancake. It has two sides. While we are not
[héarlhere] to really kind of dispute the facts, we
agree with the fact. I really feel it is necessary for
mé to kind of put him in context of how they tr&ly are

and how we came to this position as why Abbdul is
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standing here today deciding to plead guilty.

Essentially going back to it, Your Honor, this was
a drug house. The neighbors testified that cars were
comingigoing all hours of the day. We have a situation
where we have a bunch of witnesses who, A, can't agree
on wh;t they saw happen or gave a series of stories
‘until we got to this one presented today. Logan Hqghes,
you heard from this gentleman that came by and picked
him up. Logan Hughes who picked him up this guy stole
his car and is chasing him after with a gun suppdsedly,
decided to go through three or four stories before he
got to final version. He eventually was never charged
with anything despite the fact that on it's face he
facilitated this entire events and took him over there.
Also Logan Hughes was never able to identify Abbdul out
of a federal lineup. Rafael Renta one of the few people
who actually was able to identify him of from a federal
lineup, but went through about three or four stories
also before he got to his version of what happened that
day. Some version he just'started running and didn't
see anything.v Then we got here that he was chasing him
also.

Oné of the key facts is when we were going through
the earlier versus this was just kind of a freak fluke

thing and kind of admitted he was selling drugs out of
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this house.

Your Honor, we get to the two co-defendants; White
and Burris and we are in a situation that essentially
brings us here. .There was a shotqun in this young man's
lap and essentially this was a drug deal that went bad.
That's what we woula have presented at trial. The
co-defendants in this case even said to other witnesses
that he pulled the shotgun and was going to start
shooting and that Abbdul saved him. I believe it's Mr.
Burris said you saved me. He was going to shoot me and
you saved me. He got treated as a juvenile partially,
and the other co-defendant was plead down dramatically,
and when we get to the final version of what happened
Abbdul just pushed his way in and started shooting for
no reason.

Had we gone to trial we would have shown that the
forensics in no matched up with that. It was Burris's
fingerprints on the door, not Abbdul's. Nothing was
ever recovered. No ballistics could actually link him
as the person who pulled the trigger. So boiled down
the solicitor said this was neighborhood. There was a
lot of people calling 911 trying to say what happened.
Some picked him as the shooter. Some people picked
people that were in the car as the shooter. Some picked

other people as the shooter. Some said he was wearing
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this. Some said he was wearing that. Even the
co-defendants couldn't get on the same page as to who
was wearing what that day because whoever was wearing
the black was the shooter. So essentially what we
boiled this down to, what was common denominator is two
co-defendants that after they were given [their|there]
sweet deal --

THE COURT: We cleared that up today. HE admitted
he was the shooter.

Mr. Burns: He did, but it wasn't -- this wasn't
an intentional act is the-point I was going for and
based on original version from the co-defendants he
thought he was saving his friend. And I'm not —-- I
don't bring this up fo try to minimize the loss of the
family. I truly can't imagine that. But I would ask
Your Honor to sentence him for what happened. Not what
the people finally got on the same page and agreed
happened later down the road.'

I truly believe and I advised Abbdul on this
throughout the process, that had we gone to trial this
is where we would have ended up. That probably wouldn't
have been found gquilty of the murder, but he had so much
on him they would loaded him up so many Indictments, so
many direct Indictments, basically buying a used car

they would have made him buy the undercoat too.
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I advised him just to take these ancillary charges
because they were running concurrent and basically had
nothing else to lose for going down the road for
manslaughter. But, Your Honor, I truly believe and
wanted to bring this up to show tﬁe Court that this was
an accident. It was a terrible mistake, but it wasn't a
premeditated crime time that he intended to go in there
and rob him and shoot him. And again, I bring it up
because I ask Yoﬁr Honor to sentence him based on what
he is pleading to and what acfually occurred. We had a
lot of issues in this case, Your Honor. Essentialiy we
had on video ~- I'm sorry, audio -- a situation.

THE COURT: You know, to be frank with you, you
done an excellent job based on the facts of what has
been presented to me in your defense with the
negotiations that you come up with, so I don't know that
we need to revisit all of the facts of the case. We are
here to determine how to sentence him.

MR. BURNS: Yes, Your Honor, but I know it's there
job to make it sound as terrible as possible, and I
mean, if I just wasn't in the courtroom I'd believe it
was just a terribly heinous act myself. I'm not trying
to try the Court's patience.

THE COURT: I understand that.

MR. BURNS: I am just trying to tell the Court
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what I felt happen.
Abbdul wishes to Speak and his mother would like
to address the Court.

THE COURT: All right.

MS. EMMANUEL: I standing here today and I want
apologize to his family. I know I'm standing here today
because I'm Abbdul's mother, but I'm also standing here

today because I lost a child. So, I want you to know I
feel your pain. It has been several years since I lost
mine and it feel like it is yesterday. So I want you to
on behalf of my family, we are so sorry, and I know
matter what I say today can bring him back.

THE COURT: All right.

MS. EMMANUEL: But from my heart I am.

THE COURT: Ma'am, you need to direct your
comments to the Court. All right.

What's your name?

MS. EMMANUEL: Pamela. I'm Abbdul's mon.

THE COURT: All right.

MS. EMMANUEL: Anyway, I am sorry. I tried to do
the best that I can as a single mom. I tried, and f/am
So tired. I really am. And whatever time he gets today
if I am not here when you come home know that I am up
there looking at you and please make me smile. Don't

make me cry, please. I've been Crying for several years
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now, son. God knows I have tried.

Your Honor, I have been a single parent. I tried
to raise him best way I know how. Never had a male
figure in his life. Never. His dad just came home from
jail the same month he got arrested. Your Honor to
please Mercy see on him. y

THE COURT: All right. Thank you, very much.

THE COURT: All right. Yes sir, Mr. Emmanuel.

THE DEFENDANT: I would like to address the get
Gibbens's family. I want you to know that I am deeply
sorry for their loss. I want them to know I didn't mean
for none of this tolhappen. God knows I didn't.

Please, I want them to know it was not my intent or did
I did I intentionally mean to harm your son in any
pgssible way that I did. I walked in the middle of the
conversation and all I saw was the barrel of a shotgun
being pointed toward my co-defendant, and I panicked. I
pray every night and I ask God to forgive me for what I
have done and I am asking you today to please forgive
me.

I'm not murderer or monster like the media to be
or Rock Hill City. This had been very hard on me and my.
family knowing that all of them is going through all of
this because of me. So I ask you please to forgive me.

I wish I could take all of this back. Believe me when I




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

61

34

say this. Please forgive me.

Mom please don't blame yourself for mistakes that
I made. I know you gave me everything that I want and
you wanted the best for me. I wish at all times you
were talking to me I would have listened to you and I
know I would not be standing here today. So I'm very
sorfy and I know you love my with all your heart. Poo
(phonetics) please don't follow my footsteps and stay
focused in school and keep playing football and I know I
let you down.

Your Honor, I know that I doneAwrong and I didn't
mean for any of this to happen. I did not mean for
anyone to get hurt. God knows I didn't. I wish I could
take all this ‘back again, so please, Your Honor, I am
begging you to please forgive me and have mercy onime.
To Gibbeﬁ's family and my family I am truly and deeply
sorry for the loss of your son and it hurts me every
night knowiﬁg that I'm in this situation. I'm only 20
years old. I ask that you all forgive me. Even if the
Court does not forgive I ask that knowing God forgive I
will make it through my sentence.

MR. BURNS: Your Honor, if I can just to close
very briefly.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. BURNS: Going back to what the police said, I
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just wanf to point out there were a lot of people
arfested around the same time. I think it is kind of a
vast over simplification to say all crime was reduced
because of him. There was a lot of people arrested.

THﬁ COURT: Okay.

MR. BURNS: I hope the Court gives that the weight
it deserves. |

Finally Your Honor, I would just ask that he be
sentenced in accordance to what he did and the
manslaughter and if it is the max that it be the max at
thirty for the manslaughter for what he truly did.

THE COURT: All right. When you come to Court you
bring your prior record with you and yoﬁ have got quite
a record, Emmanuel. So, I am going to give you thirty
years on the manslaughter, five on the possession of a
weapon during a violent crime, ten years on the armed
robbery consecutive. Five on the pointing and
presenting. Twenty on the assault and battery. Five on
the possession of weapon during that offense. Five on
each of the conspiracy and one on the carrying a pistol.
Good luck to you.

MR. EPTING: Thank you, Your Honor.

(END OF TRANSCRIPT)
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CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned Aileen Butler, Official Court Reporter
for the 16TH Judicial Circuit of the State of South Carolina,
do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true, accurate, and
complete transcript of record of all the proceedings in the
captioned case, in the Circuit Court for York County, South
Carolina, on the 29th day of September, 2014.

I do further certify that I am neither of kin, counsel,
nor interest to any party hereto.

March 22, 2016
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C 3TATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
: ' - ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
(L unie of \IM\L.........w....._..,._.._,_,,.‘.w- ).
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State of South Carolina ) POST-CONVICTION RELHE S O
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INSTRUCTIONS - READ CAREFULLY. ° .

In order for this application to receive consideration by the Court, it shall be in writing (legibly
handwritten or typewritten), signed by the applicant and verified (notarized), and it shall set forth in
concise form the answers to each applicable question. If necessary, applicant may furnish his answer to a

particular question on the reverse side of the page or on an additional page. Applicant shall make clear to
which question any such continued answer refers. '

Since every application must be swom under oath, any false statement of a material fact therein

may serve as the basis of prosecution and conviction for perjury. Applicants should, therefore, exercise
care to assure that all answers are true and correct.

If the application is taken in forma pauperis, it shall include an affidavit (attached at the back of
the form) setting forth information which establishes that applicant will be unable to pay the fees and

costs of the proceedings. When the application is completed, the original shall be mailed to the Clerk of
Court for the County in which the applicant was convicted. ‘

1. Place of detention Lee QC\)&&% '\ﬁp_'c { £ Iy 61 {eChop's.

3. Name(s) of co-dé endant(s) G%any) @QM’(‘: O
NOBCEL. RS

The indictment number or numbers (if known) upon which and the offenses for which
sentence was imposed: - ', -
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The date up%m which sentence was imposed and the terms of the sentence:
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after a plea of guilty g

(b)  after a plea of not guilty

(c)  after a plea of nolo contendere

- Did you appeal from the judgment of conviction or the imposition of sentence?

If you answered “yes” to (7), list:

(a) the- name of each Court to which you appealed:
1. oY e A
A

iii.

(b) the result in each such Court to which you appealed:

i, Al
~ JOTT1¢

iii. -

(c)  the date of each such result:

. M
v 1

v
iii.

(d)  if known, citations of any written opinion or orders entered pursuant to such
results: '

i. ‘

b ’h \} } iﬂ v

iii.

If you answered "no” to (7), state your reasons for not so appealing:

(a)

©) NHX
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(c)
State concisely the grounds on which you base your allegation that you are bein;; held in

custody unlawfully:

e T — st
et e Y]
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© M&mﬁ of Counded,

State concisely and in the same order the facts which support each of the grounds set out
in (10):

(a) —R\m}(& 0 Q\o\e@c 0 Sentaod m @!me

(b) :E:mm.g 10\ @m 8&&&
(©)
Prior to this application have you filed with respect to this conviction:

(a)  any petition in a State Court under South Carolina Law?___ \JO

(b)  any petition in State or Federal Courts for habeas corpus or post-convic ions

relief? __ w0
(6)  any petition in the United States Supreme Court for certiorari other thaz: petitions,
if any, already specified in (8)? VO

(d)  any other petitions, motions or applications in this or any other Court? _ \J0)
If you answered "yes" to any part of (12), list with respect to each petition, mction or
application: .

(a) the specific nature thereof:

i.

ii. AN
N1

iv.

(b)  the name and location of the Court in which each was filed:
i.

. A 10N

i NS

iv.
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{¢) the disposition thereof:
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14.

15.

iv. .
(d) the date of each such disposition:
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iv.

(e)  if known, citations of any written opinions or orders entered pursuant to each such

disposition:

ii. f i

/\) iy

N T—] ©
iv.

Has any ground set forth in (10) been previously presented to this or any other Court,

State or Federal, in any petition, motion or application which you have filed?

RO

If you answered “yes” to (14) identify:
(@)  which grounds have been presented:

: AN,
A

(b)  the proceedings in which each ground was raised:

iii.

i, , N
i ' [N [TV
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i6.  Ifany ground set forth in (10) has not previously been presented to any Court, State or 69
Federal, set forth the ground and state conclsely the reasons w}E' SuicH ground hids nof ~ -
previously been presented:

(@) S— A

W) ’l \J =

(©)

17.  Were you represented by an attorney at any time during the course of:

(@)  your arraignment and plea? ies

(b)  your trial, if any? J 20

(c)  your sentencing? ues

(d)  your appeal, if any, from the judgmer‘,fgr of conviction or the imposition of
sentence? '

(¢)  preparation, presentation or consideration of any petitions, motions or
applications with respect to this conviction, which you filed?

18.  Ifyou answered “yes” to one or more parts of (17), list:

(@

=13

ii.

iii.

(b)

i.

ii.

iii.

the name and address of each attorney who represented you:
ke Bow's
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foda_se, 291t
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the proceedings at which each such attorney represented you:

01 8&\«%\%«’3 ,
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19.  State clearly the relief you seek in filing this application:
Aha o’ ‘-‘il BN A0-26 (\0QS T

WA e 4o vacade Chtiend Sepkedce Oind (Rond R e Yaal.

.County of \! 8 )

WD

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) . VERIFICATION

I, i & , being duly swomn
upon my oath, depose and say that I have subscribed to the foregoing application; that I know the
contents thereof; that it includes every ground known to me for vacating, setting aside or
correcting the conviction and sentence attacked in this application; and that the matters and
allegations therein set forth are true,

SWORN to and subscribed before me this “57
day of &@Umb& ,_2015 .

Notary Public .

My Commission Expires: i l -05-20I 9

Revised 3/2003




. . . T S fe eremtmim et e e e

APPLICATION TO PROCEED WITHOUT PAYMENT

OF COSTS AND AFFIDAVIT
IN.SUPPORT. THEREOE. oo,

I, M‘Y\m{\\)@\ - , hereby apply for leave to

proceed in this action without prepayment of fees or costs or security therefor. In support of my
application I declare under penalty of petjury that the following facts are true:

@ I am the applicant in this action and I believe I am entitled to redress.

Because of my poverty I am unable to pay the costs of said proceeding or give
security thereof, .

- adgedid .A%\M»/(

SWORN or affirmed to and subscribed before me this -
ST day of et bes, 2818

UOraw Public
My Commission Expires: f /- 05 20 / 9

Revised 3/2003
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
) OF THE SIXTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF YORK )
) 2015-CP-46-2745
Abbdul Emmanuel, )
S.C.D.C. No. 350618, )
Applicant, )
) RETURN
V. )
)
State of South Carolina, )
)
Respondent. )
)

Respondent, making its Return to the application for post-conviction relief (PCR) filed

September 11, 2015, would réspectfully show this Court:
L

Applicant is presently confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant
to orders of commitment of the York County Clerk of Court. Applicant was indicted at the April
2014 term of General Sessions for murder (2014-GS-46-1220), possession of a weapon during
the commission of a violent crime (2014-GS-46-1220A), armed robbery (2014-GS-46-1221),
ﬁossession of a weapon dﬁring the commission of a violent crime (2014-GS-46-1221A), criminal
conspiracy (2014-GS-46-1222), and pointing/presenting a firearm (2014-GS-46-1223).
Applicant waived presentment to the grand jury on the charges of criminal conspiracy (2014-GS-
46-1503), assault and battery of a high and aggravated nature (2014-GS-46-2876), po‘ssession of |
a weapon during the commission of a violent g:rime (2014-GS-46-2876A), unlawful carrying of a
pistol (2014-GS-46-2884) and criminal conspiracy (2014-GS-46-2885).

Applicant appeared on September 29, 2014, before the Honorable Edward Miller, while
represented by Tyler Burns, Esquire. According to the transcript, Applicant had already pled

guilty before the Honorable Roger Couch to voluntary manslaughter, possession of a weapon
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during the commission of a violent crime, armed robbery, and one count of criminal conspiracy
but deferred sentencing to September 29, 2014 before Judge Miller. Applicant pled guilty to the
~ other charges as indicted. Applicant was sentenced with all sentences running concurrently

except Armed Robbery. His sentences read as follows:

Yoluntary Manslaughter (2014-GS-46-1220) 30 years

Possession of a Weapon During the Commission of a Violent | 5 years
Crime (2014-GS-46-1220A)

Armed Robbery (2014-GS-46-1221) 10 years (consecutive)

Possession of a Weapon During the Commission of a Violent | 5 years
Crime (2014-GS-46-1221A)

Criminal Conspiracy (2014-GS-46-1222) 5 years
Pointing/Presenting a Firearm (2014-GS-46-1223) 5 years
Criminal Conspiracy (2014-GS-46-1503) 5 years
ABHAN (2014-GS-46-2876) 20 years

Possession of a Weapon During the Commission of a Violenf 5 years
Crime (2014-GS-46-2876A)

Unlawful Carrying of a Pistol (2014-GS-46-2884 | 1 year

Criminal Conspiracy (2014-GS-46-2885) S years

Applicant did not file a notice of appeal.
IL.

In his current application for post-conviction relief, Applicant alleges he is being held

!

unlawfully for the following reasons, verbatim:
1. Ineffective Assistance of Counsel

a. . Failure to object to sentencing phase
b. Failure to investigate

Any claims not specifically enumerated in the PCR application or amendments will be
opposed by the State at evidentiary hearing. All amendments should be made well in advance of

hearing and should be filed as required by Rule 11, SCRCP(a).
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Attached herewith and incorporated herein are the York County Clerk of Court records
regarding the subject convictions, Applicant's records from the South Carolina Department of
Corrections, and the plea transcript. Respondent reserves the right to amend this Return upon
receipt of any relevant materials.

1.

Respondent submits plea counsel rendered effective assistance of counsel. In a Post-
Conviction Relief action, the applicant Bears the burden of proving the allegations in their
application. Butler v. State, 286 S.C. 441, 334 S.E.2d 813 (1985). Where the application alleges
ineffective assistance of counsel as a ground for relief, the applicant must prove that "counsel's

conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the adversarial process that the trial cannot be

~ relied upon as having produced a just result." Strickland v. Washington, 466,U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct.

2052, 2064 (1984); Butler, 334 S.E.2d 813.

The proper measure of performance is whether the attorney provided representation
within the range of competence required in criminal cases. The courts presume that counsel
rendered adequate assistance and made all significant decisions in the exergise of reasonable
professional judgment. Strickland, 466 U.S. 668. Applicant must overcome this presumption in
order to receive relief. Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 386 S.E.2d 624 (1989).

The reviewing court applies a two-pronged test in evaluating allegations of ineffective
assistance of plea counsel. First, Applicant must prove that counsel's performance was deficient.
Under this prong, the court measures an attorney’s performance by its "reasonableness under
professional norms." Cherry, 300( S.C. at- 117, 386 S.E.2d at 625, citing Strickland. Second,

counsel's deficient performance must have prejudiced Applicant such that "there is a reasonable

probability that, but for counsel's unprofessional errors, the result of the proceeding would have
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been different.” Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117-18, 386 S.E.2d at 625. With respect to guilty plea
counsel, Applicant must show that there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's alleged
errors, he would not have pled guilty and would have insisted on going to trial. Hill v. Lockhart,
474 U.S. 52, 106 S.Ct. 366 (1985).

Respondent submits that Applicant cannot satisfy either requirement of the Strickland
test. However, the allegation of ineffective assistance of counsel probably raises questions of fact
that the record does not conclusively refute. Accordingly, Respondent requests an evidentiary
hearing to fully resolve this issue. See Sharper v. State, 279 S.C. 264, 305 S.E.2d 247 (1983).

IV.
Each and every allegation contained within the application not hereinbefore either

expressly admitted, qualified or explained is hereby denied.

[signature block on next page]
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V.
WHEREFORE, having made its Return, the State requests that an evidentiary hearing be
held. |
Respectfully submitted,

ALAN WILSON

Attorney General

JOHN W. McINTOSH

Chief Deputy Attorney General
JOHANNA C. VALENZUELA

Senior Assistant Deputy Attorney ‘General
JUSTIN J. HUNTER

Assistant Attorney General

¢ S

ATEORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT
Oftice of the Attorney General

P.O. Box 11549

- Columbia, S.C. 29211

Juy 8 2016
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
N ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF YORK )
)
) 2015-CP-46-2745
" . )
ABBDUL EMMANUEL, #350618, )
)
Applicant; )
) . o
Vs ). AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
) : '
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, )
)
Respondent, )
)
I. 1 am an eraployee of the Respondent in the above-captioned action.
2. Regular communication by mail exists throughout the State of South Carolina and that
this is a proper circumstance of service by mail.
3. I have this day served a copy of the Retarn in the-above-captioned matter on the

following person by depositing same in the United States mail, postage prepaid:

DATED this 8" day of July, 2016.

Nathan J. Sheldon, Esquire

The Law Office of Nathan J. Sheldon, LLC’
PO Box 36682

Rock Hill, SC 29732-0510

Jé Legal Assistant
For Respondent




State of South Carolina., In the Common Pleas Court

)
) Of York
)
) Case No. 2015-GS-46-02745
County of York. )
Abbdul Oman Emmanuel., )
)
Applicant., )
_ ) Transcript of Record
-v- ) Post Conviction Relief
‘ )
State of South Carolina.,)
)
)
)

Respondent.

February 1, 2017
York, South Caroclina

BEFORE:
The Honorable J. Mark Hayes, Jjudge.
APPEARANTCE S:

Mr. Nathan James Sheldon

The Law Office of Nathan J. Shelton, LLC
PO Box 36682

Rock Hill, South Carolina 29732
nathan@nathansheldonlaw.com

(803) 909-9343

Attorney for the Applicant

Mr. Justin James Hunter

S.C. Attorney General's Office

PO Box 11549

Columbia, South Carolina 29211-1549
jhunter2@scag.gov

(803) 734-=3737

Applicant for the Respondent

Wanda S. Nelson, CVR-M

Official Court Reporter

To The Honorable John C. Hayes, III
Sixteenth Judicial Circuit

Union and York Counties
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INDEZX

EXHIBTITS

NO. DESCRIPTION ID.

No Exhibits were received into the record.

EVD.
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(COURT IN SESSION, ON THE RECORD AT 10:00 AM.)

(APPLICANT, ABBDUL EMMANUEL, ENTERS COURTROOM.)

MR. HUNTER: May it please the Court, your Honor.

The next case is Abbdul Emmanuel versus State of
South Carolina. It’s 2015-CP-46-2745.

Your Honor, if you would bear with me. I’11 try to
get this right but your Honor has the return and everything
in your packet. He was indicated at the April 2014 term of
York County for murder, possession of a weapon during the
commission of a violent crime, armed robbery, and criminal
conspiracy.

And, your Honor, I believe he appeared July 2lst,
2014. As far as those charges‘are concerned he pled guilty
to voluntary manslaughter, the weapons charge, armed
robbery, and criminal conspiracy. The sentencing was
deferred to a later date. On September 29th, 2014 he pled
to and was sentenced —-- He pled to the rest of the charges
I’'m not gonna read out.

Pointing and presenting a firearm, criminal
conspiracy. He waived presentment to the following four
charges. ABHAN; possession of a weapon during the
commission of a violent crime, unlawful carrying of a
pistol, and criminal conspiracy.

So, your Honor, on September 29th, 2014 he was before

Judge Miller; he pleads to the last six charges I read out
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and sentenced on all of them. The sentences read as
follows: ~For voluntary manslaughter he received thirty
years. Weapons charge he received five years. Armed
robbery he received ten years consecutive. And all of
these are concurrent unless I say consecutive, your Honor.
For criminal conspiracy five years; pointing and presenting
a firearm five years. The second criminal conspiracy five
years. These last four that he waived presentment on were
negotiated sentences. ABHAN was twenty years; weapons
charge five years; unlawful carrying of a pistol one year
and the last criminal conspiracy charge five years.

Your Honor, he did not file a notice of appeal and for
the record, I'm sorry, I apologize, he was represented on
all these charges by Mr. Tyler Burns. He filed this
current action December 10th, 2015. He’s present today
represented by Mr. Nathan Shelton.

MR. SHELTON: Thank you, your Honor, may it please the
Court. We, if the court’s inclined, is ready to proceed,
then we Qould call Mr. Emmanuel to the stand.

THE COURT: Sir, just come right here and let the
Clerk of Court swear you in.

MADAM CLERK: If I can have you step right here.

Place your left hand on the Bible. Raise your right as far
as you can.

(WﬂEREUPON, ABBDUL EMMANUEL,
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ABDUL EMMANUEL: DIRECT BY MR. SHELDON -6-

BEING FIRST CALLED AND DULY SWORN, TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS:)

MADAM CLERK: Thank you. Just have a seat there and
just watch your step up.

THE COURT: Sir, the lady that’s over to your right,
she’s a court reporter. She’s taking down everything
that’s said so I need you to speak up loud enough s§ that
she can hear you and also so your lawyer who’s gonna be way
on the other side of the courtfoom.

MR. EMMANUEL: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. SHELTON: May it please the Court, your Honor.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

ABBDUL EMMANUEL BY MR. SHELTON:
Q. Mr. Emmanuel; please state your name for the record.

A. Abbdul Emmanuel.

Q. And are you currently incarcerated in SCDC?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. You serving a forty-year-sentence on, I think thirty

years on a manslaughter and then ten years consecutive on
an armed robbery?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then a bunch of other stuff that ran concurrent
to all that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. Mr. Emmanuel, you’re here on PCR today; is
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ABDUL EMMANUEL: DIRECT BY MR. SHELDON . -7-

that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you’re asking the court to vacate these
convictions and remand this case back to -- for a new
trial?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You understand that this is not a sentence reduction
hearing?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that if this case is remanded back to trial that

you would then be facing murder and whatever you were
originally charged with. The State wouldn’t be capped at

manslaughter or anything like that.

A. Yes, sir.
Q. Knowing all that you still want to go forward today?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Mr. Emmanuel, were you represented by Mr. Tyler
Burns in this case? |

A. Yes, sir, I was.

Q. And what —— Was he your adttorney from the beginning
of the case?

A. Yes, sir, he was.

0. So you didn’t haﬁe any public defender prior to that.
It was always Mr. Burns?

A. Ye%, sir, I was assigned Mr. Tyler Burns because my
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ABDUL EMMANUEL: DIRECT BY MR. SHELDON -8-

other two co-defendants was assigned a public defender.

Q. Okay. So Mr. Burns was appointed ---

A. Yes, sir.

Q. -~— to represent you from the beginning though?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. How many times were you -— How many times were

you able to meet with Mr. Burns throughout the process?

A, Four or five times.
Q. Tell me this, Mr. Emmanuel, when were you arrested?
A, I was arrested January —-- I think January 9th of

January 10th.

Q. Of what year?

A. Of 2014.

Q. And eventually you end up pleading guilty.

MR. SHELTON: And just so, I don’t know if this was
made clear, this was essentially a bifurcated plea, your
Honor, where a plea was entered into and then a sentence —--
it was deferred to sentencing for a later day so there are
actually two different transcripts we’ll be referencing
throuéhouf this hearing.

Q. You end up pleading guilty to some of these charges

in July of 2014; is that right?

A. Yes, sir.
Q. And then ultimately being sentenced in September of
20147
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ABDUL EMMANUEL: DIRECT BY MR. SHELDON -9-
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Okay. What — What was your relationship like with

Mr. Burns?

A. Not good.

Q. Did you have —- Did you —- Were you able to go over
the discovery in your case; things like that?

A. No, sir.

Q. What did y’all -- When he would come to meetuwith you
what would y’all talk about?

A. He would talk about what him and his solicitor would
talk about and he would talk about what could happen to me
if I did, if I did not take the plea.

Q. And what all could happen to you if you didn’t take
the plea?

A. He told me I could be doing a life sentence.

Q. Okay. And basically that was based on the murder and
all these charges; is that right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you -- Prior to July 21st, 2014 when you entered
into your guilty plea were you given any offer from the
State? What was the first offer in this case from the
State?

A. He came to me and he told me the State offered me
forty-five years.

Q. Forty-five, a forty-five years offer was the first
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ABDUL EMMANUEL: DIRECT BY MR. SHELDON -10-
offer?

A. Yes, sir..

0. Did you accept or reject that offer?

A. I rejected it immediately.

0. What was your position? Did you want to plead, go

to trial? What did you want to do with the case?

A. I wanted to go to trial but then he came to me and
told me that my co-defendant took a pleé with the
Solicitors; that if I went to trial that I would get life
sentence.

Q. Okay. So he came to you and said that your co-
defendant pled; is that right?

A. No. They took a plea with the solicitors. I guess
they talked to the solicitor’s and they gave ‘em a ten year
plea if they’d testify on me.

Q. So you had co-defendants at some point that were
potentially gonna testify against you at trial?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. Was the offer — Did the offer change from
forty-five years at any point?

A. No, sir, not that I was -- No.

0. So, when did — What was your final offer in the case
that was your understanding?

A. He told me if I took the plea that I would be

sentenced to twenty to twenty-five years.
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ABDUIL, EMMANUEL: DIRECT BY MR. SHELDON v -11-
Q. And when.was that?
A. That was in September. Or July. It was July lst and

then it was in September.

Q. At the initial hearing, the initial plea in July?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was the conversation you had with Mr. Burns at
that time?

A. The conversation I had with him was that I wanted to

go to trial and I didn’t feel that they had no evidence on
me because he never -- he never really went over my motion
discovery with me. He never showed me that they had
nothing on me or anything. I was doing basically stating
stuff to him.

Q. And what did --- So what did he say that the State
was offering to you?

A. He said the State was offering me twenty to twenty-
five years if I took the plea that they was gonna let my

sister and my mother go.

Q. Were your sister and your mother charged as well?
A. Yes, sir, they was.

Q. What were they charged with?

A. They was charged with accessory to murderf

Q. Okay. And was that stemming from the whole string

of incidents that you’re involved with? The same murder?

A. Yes, sir..
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ABDUL EMMANUEL: DIRECT BY MR. SHELDON -12-

Q. Okay. So, when you initially enter a plea of guilt
on July 21st of 2014, what was your understanding of what
the sentence range was that you were pleading to?

A. Twenty to twenty-five years.

Q. Okay. And then when you’re actually sentenced in
September 29th of 2014 what was your understanding of this
— of what you could get in terms of sentence?

A. I hadn’t fully understand what I was gonna get until

afterwards; till after I got the forty years.

Q. But I mean what did you think? What were you
thinking?

A. I thought I was gonna get twenty-five years.

0. If the — If you had known the offer was forty would

you have gone to trial?

A. Yes, sir, I'd went to trial. I have forty years.

Q. And I'm sorry, let me rephrase that. If you would
have known that you were exposed to forty years would you

have gone to trial?

A. Yes, sir.

0. Would you have taken the plea of a twenty to forty
range?

A. No, sir.

Q. Where were you and — Where did you and Mr. Burns

talk? I mean where were these conversations taking place

at?

89




90

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

ABDUL EMMANUEL: DIRECT BY MR. SHELDON -13-

A. In lockup.

Q. So were you in the Detention Center?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Okay. Was it your understanding that he was also

communicating with your family at that time as well?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What other concerns did you have with Mr. Burns
during his representation of you?

A, That he was also going through problems with his
wife and his family.

Q. What — How was that at all relevant tp what he’s
doing with his involvement in your case?

A. Cause I didn’t feel like he was fully representing me
because he was dealing with another situation.

Q. Did he —-- Were there anything that he specifically
did that you didn’t want him to do or didn’t do that you
wanted him to do?

A. Yes, sir. I mean basically he coerced me to take
this plea basically.

Q. So had yoﬁ — had he not leaned on you you would not
have taken the plea?

A. No, sir.

Q. Was this case properly investigated by the defense
team do you think?

A. No, sir.
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ABBDUL EMMANUEL: DIRECT BY MR. SHELTON -14-

CROSS BY MR. HUNTER

Q. Did they hire an investigator?
A. Yes, sir. He only came and spoke to me once and
said that the time difference from the incident from where
they say they picked me up didn’t match. That’s it.
0. So you did speak with an investigator but just on
one occasion; is that right?
A. Yes, sir. Yes, sir.

MR. SHELTON: Thank you, your Honor. No more
questions.

MR. HUNTER: Just a few questions.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

ABBDUL EMMANUEL BY 'MR. HUNTER:

Q. So you said that you thought the deal the whole time
was twenty to twenty-five years?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. But at the beginning of the first plea hearing I
believe the Solicitor said our recommendation is twenty to
forty. Do you remember that?

A. No, sir, I was eighteen years old at the time. I
didn’t fully understand what they was meaning by that.

Q. You didn’t understand what we are recommending twenty
to forty years means?

A. No, sir, not at the time. I wasn’t up to scale with

the law.

0. But you understand what sentence numbers means, right?
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ABBDUL EMMANUEL: CROSS BY MR. HUNTER ~15-

A. Yeah, I do now.
Q. Okay. And you heard the judge going over with you the

potential sentences you would be facing?

A. No, sir, I do not.
Q. At either plea hearing?
A. No, sir.

Q. Okay. Do you remember the judge saying that he’s
not bound by the recommendation?

A. No, sir.

Q. And the judge —~ I believe you told the judge that

no one had promised or threatened you to take this plea,

correct?

A. That I — I mean I guess.

Q. Ckay.

A. I don’t remember. I mean I don’t remember.

0. And you told the judge that no one had promised you

about the length of the sentence you would receive?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. I believe during both hearings you told the
judge that you were completely satisfied with your
attorney, corfect?

A. Yes, sir, but that’s me talking. That’s me and we
discussed about that he told me to come in here and say.
Q. Now as far as the plea’s concerned, did he discuss

with you the fact that you were pleading to voluntary
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ABBDUL EMMANUEL: CROSS BY MR. HUNTER -l6-

manslaughter instead of murder?

A. No, sir.

Q. That was never discussed?

A. No, sir.

Q. How come you never bring any of this to the judge’s
attention?

A. I was such dazed by what was going on and I was so

rushed and it was so much pressure on me at the time I
didn’t fully understand what was going on.
Q. So after your sentence you never told the judge hold
on I don’t understand what’s going on?
A. After the sentence I didn’t talk to nobody. My lawyer
he did not come back there and talk to me. I had talked to
nobody. I had never seen him again.
Q. Okay. Well during the hearing you never told the
judge hold on I don’t understand what’s going on?
A, No, sir, cause he’s a lawyer, the way he was breaking
it down it sounded way different than what he was saying.
MR. HUNTER: I don’t have any further questions.
THE COURT: Are redirect limited to what he went into?
MR. SHELTON: No, sir, your Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you, sir. You may step down. Watch
your step as you step down, sir.
(WITNESS LEAVES WITNESS STAND.)

MR. SHELTON: Your Honor, that’s our case.
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TYLER BURNS: DIRECT BY MR. HUNTER -17-

THE COURT: Thank you, sir.

MR. HUNTER: Your Honor, the State would call Mr.
Tyler Burns.

THE COURT: Just come right up here and let the Clérk
of Court swear you in.

MADAM CLERK: Mr. Burns, if I can have you place your
left hand on the Bible and raise your right.

(WHEREUPON, TYLER BURNS,

BEING FIRST CALLED AND DULY SWORN, TESTIFIED AS\FdLLOWS:)

THE COURT: Just have a seat in the witness chair
and speak up loud enough so that both the court reporter
and the Attorney General can hear you.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

TYLER BURNS BY MR. HUNTER:
Q. Good morning, Mr. Burns. Can you please state your

name for the record?

A. James Tyler Burns.

Q. And were are you currently employed?

A. South Carolina Department of Social Services.

Q. And where were you employed back in 20147

A, I was in private préctice with a firﬁ, basically I

was a part of, in Fort Mill and this area.
Q.. Okay. Can you explain how you were appointed, you
were appointed on this case?

A. I was. It was a conflict out due to multible co-
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defendants.

Q. And you received that information from the PD’s
office?

A. No. Actually I believe, if I remember correctly, I
first learned about my appointment as usually is the case
through the defendant’s family. They contacted me first
and then I received my order of appointment from the
Clerk’s office.

Q. And how long, I guess, were you appointed before the
first plea hearing?

A. Six monthsish. I don’t remember exactly but it was
a good while.

Q. Okay. How many times would you saw before that first

plea hearing did y’all meet?

A. With Mr. Emmanuel?

Q. Yes. With the defendant. Sorry.

A. Many. I don’t remember exactly but it was a good
many times. It got increasingly more difficult to meet
with Mr. Emmanuel. He was basically reclassified several
times to where he was basically in lockup‘and we got more
and more secured in our meetings throughout the process.
So, it got more difficult as it progressed but we met many
times throughout the whole thing.

Q. Okay. And did you discovery what y’all discussed

during these meetings?

95
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A. The first couple of go rounds were just a getting to
know~you, trying to get his side of what happened. We
discussed mainly just the shear number of charges he had.
And I don’t believe that what he was actually charged with
was really reflected because there was an additional maybe
five attempted murders that were -- he had ancillary
charges tﬁat ;ccompanied this that were differént fact
basis on different days that basically kind of correlated

that he was charged with and kind of went through each of

those piece by piece as to what happened. Kind of told him

what my role was and that the representation that I would

provide and where to start looking for his defense.

And as it progressed we received discovery from the
State. I would kind of relay that and conversations I had
with the prosecutor. Just kind of try to wrap up a whole
lot of meetings and conversations into one small answer but

that’s a start.

Q. Okay. So you said you received discovery, correct?

A. Yes.

0. And you said your meetings may have been a little
|

tough because of lock up. Were you still able to go over
discovery with Mr. Emmanuel? '

A. Yes. It was, I think, five DVD’s worth of burnt

‘information. There was witness reports from eye witnesses

—-— just talking about the murder case- - eye witness
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reports, autopsy reports, photos; his audio recordings from
statements he had given police. I printed out what I
thought was the most pertinent because it would have —- the
amount of volume in data -- I'm talking about these DVD’s
-— would have taken probably close to this courtroom if I’d
printed it all out and filled them in banker boxes, so I
took him what I could that was the most important parts of
the case for him to review when we reviewed the rest of it.
But some parts of it such as recordings, photographs, or
video, just weren’t as practical to review as other items
of the discovery.

Q. Okay. And despite his young age, do you feel like you
were able to converse with him and discuss his case
thoroughly with him?

A. I do. It wasn’t his first run in. He had actually
just gotten out of the Evaluation Center in Columbia. So
he seemed to be pretty familiar versed with the process as
far as I could tell. And I never had any —— We were
dealing with a lot of complex illegal issues that I believe
anybody that is a lay person would have a hard time
comprehending but there was never anything that made me
believe he wasn’t ultimately grasping it and being able to
cooperate and prepare in his defense.

Q. And as far as preparing his own defense, what did he

tell you specifically to aid your investigation of your
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defense?

A. Mostly that he didn’t do it. I believe at first we
had discussed the possibility of an alibi defensé and I
kind of cautioned him about that because I had seen
basically in my experience that if it wasn’t true alibi’s
has the tendendy to blow up on you. And one of the main
parts with this case was, again referring to the murder
case, and not all the other attempted murders, there was
essentially an issue with the time line of what the state
was presenting happened.

And the State was basically presenting that his two
co-defendant’s that were charged along with him basically
went to the alternative school in Rock Hill and they met an
individual there -~ and y’all have to forgive me, I'm
terrible with names so I’m gonna to use the labels —- met
another person that they went to school there that knew
about the victim in this case who sold drugs. 2And, their
account or their theory of the cése was that these people
met them at the alternative school picked up Mr. Emmanuel
on their way to basically rob him and all this happened
within a very brief amount of time. I know it was fifteen
to twenty minutes. And it was very problematic that all
those things could have happened in sequence based on that
time. So we actually had an investigator appointed to from

-— by the court release funds from Indigent Defense and he
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ran those routes at many times throughout the day to
determine if it was possible that the time line the State
was presenting. So that was the main thing was to kind of
pick it apart that he didn’t have the opportunity to commit
the crime.

Q. And based on your investigation did you think that

you should go to trial then?

A, No. It was extremely overwhelming evidence. And
kind of to back up for a second, he was charged with like I
said several other charges with it, many attemptéd murders.
I believe I said five. My conversations with the
prosecutor Mr. Thompson they basically said they weren’t
even gonna start with the murder case. They were going to
basically strike him out on serious and most serious’s
before they even got to the murder case.

As to the murder case, that eéidence was pretty bad
too, but when we got to that point it was essentially --
and I’m sorry, let me back up. There was -— I kind of
broke it down into all these other cases, all these
attempted murder cases, and then the main case, the murder
case. And in all these attempted murder cases he actually
gave a statement to Rock Hill Police Department basically
admitting that he did all these things. .

So, going into the murder case we were already looking

at a sub-zero gain where he was probably gonna be LWOP’d at
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that poinf anyway because he basically admitted to all of
these other offenses along the way.

What I actually ended up doing was -- The detéctive
actually recorded himself saying to Mr. Emmanuel that if he
would just tell the police what happened all the warrants
would be withdrawn and he could walk out of there a free
man; that he wouldn’t face any consequences. So I filed a
motion to enforce that contract basically that he had lived
up to his end of the bargain. He had given complete non-
statements as ﬁo what had occurred in these attempted
murder cases and that the state should live up to theirs as
well. And that was heard before Judge John Hayes prior to
the first plea and it was denied but it was -- Basically
Judge Hayes saying that he believed it was more of a.civil
issue to be resolved later. So we kind of set that up to
be used later on down the road with the actual murder case.

When we progressed to the actuél murder case and
whether or not we would decide to go to trial what we ended
up doing was leveraging that civil case against the city of .
Rock Hill who was the detectives in the murder case and
basically agreed fo waive any lawsuit against the City in
exchange for them coming off of the murder to manslaughter.

And they came off of that day to day and to the
manslaughter was the sentencing range and that’s when I

took that to Mr. Emmanuel for the plea and I thought that
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was a much better outcome for him considering his age and
the fact that he was gonna walk cout of prison one day.
Q. Now aside from I guess including that sort of
negotiation, can you go over the plea negofiations? What
was the first plea negotiation, I guéss the plea offer the
State gave?
A. I don’t remember exactly. It wasn’t anything great.
It was around forty to fifty. I don’t remember exactly
what it was numerically. I believe we were still looking.
pretty close to day for day time at that point. We hadn’t
even discussed manslaughter possibilities but it was pretty
high. And I took that to Mr. Emmanuel and he maintained
that he didn’t want to take the plea; that he wanted to go
to trial, so we just continued to prepare for trial.
Q. Okay. Atiwhat point did you guys discuss, I guess
the final plea offer and his acceptance of that?
A. It was actually a couple of different times. I
believe three or four. I didn’t press him for answer. The
first couple of times I believe I kind of set it up to what
their offer was; what I felt about it; what the evidence
was pros and cons, and we kind of touched base on it a
couple times, kind of came back and see if he had any
questions talked to his family about it.

Part of it too was that his -—— I believe mother and

sister were charged with accessory after the fact. The
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state basically said they would loose interest in his
family i1if he were inclined to basically end the case as
well. So wé kind of discussed all those factors; what
would happen, what I believed would happen if he went to
trial on the charges. Again all the attempted murder
charges, all those charges —-- weapons charges and then the
murder charge itself as opposed to what he was looking at
with the plea agreement and I believe I said three or four
times we met on that.

Q. So what was the fidal plea offer?

A. Final plea offer was that they were gonna come off
the murder. They dropped a lot of the charges. A lot of
the actual kind of shooting -- other shootings that
happened be it the murder charges -- they kind of let him
pick a few of the ones that he would agree to plead to and
they went to from murder to manslaughter with the charges
that were in that indictment the armed robbery, possession
of a weapon during a violent crime, for a sentencing range
of twenty to forty.

0. Twenty to forty. Was there any discussion about
whether it would be all concurrent or it would be a
consecutive sentence in there?

A. Well it was my understanding based on the sentence
that each one carried that there was some inherent risk of

consecutive sentences because you couldn’t get to forty off
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of any one of those sentences individually so it would have
had to a been stacked somehow. Of course you get into the
very touchy situation of how a consecutive sentence affects
how you serve or your parole eligibility on the pervious
sentences and what sentences they stack based on the time
that that was all up to the judge but it couldn’t be any'
more than forty.

You know you kind of look at a best case scenario
where you get the minimum. And I tell pretty much — I
told all my criminal clients, and I told Mr. Emmanuel the
same, SCDC doesn’t understand how SCDC confuse time and
sentencing that I wasn’t even gonna attempt to try to
computé it but theoretically it would work out to around
eighty-five percent. But you know you couldn’t quote the
good-time credit or what he’d get credit for. So with the
way it was actually presented with a maximum of forty knew
that there was an inhefent risk that it was gonna be a
pretty léngthy bottom sentence with a consecutive one
stacked on top of it.

Q. So twenty to forty was the final offer and that’s
what he agreed to; is that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. And was there ever a discussion about twenty
to twenty-five years?

A. Yeah. I never promised him that but with his age
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and the fact that we were basically foregoing a trial on
all these cases, that that was pretty much his best case
scenario of what he was looking at. I didn’t think that he
was going to get the absolute minimum. We didn’t have any
where close to mitigation that would justify a judge coming
anywhere close to the minimum of the range. And I didn’t
truly at the time foresee the maximum either.

I kind of would tell all of my clients, kind of told
‘em all the same, that there’s the difference between
what’s probable and what’s possible. What’s possible was
getting forty years and what was probable I thought truly
at that time was a range of twenty-five to thirty. But
that was, again, his best case scenario.
Q. Well as far as his probable sentence of twenty to
thirty, how did you relay that information to him?
A. Well I just -- I thought that if we —- He ask -- He
kind of wanted absolutes as to what he was going to get and
pretty much told him there was just far too many factors to
ever say that you couldn’t guarantee anybody anything ever;
that there was nothing I could guarantee him permanently or
about anything let alone his sentence. Just again; with
what we had by way of mitigation it was just my kind of
educated guess I thought that’s what we were looking-at by
way of —- by way of the sentence. Kind of by what I had

seen sentencing wise in the past; what I thought was
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possible; what I thought we could shoot for; what I thought
was realistically for him to look at, but I related too
that I could be dead wrong that it’s happened many times in
the past. I could a been wrong about this that it could
have -- he could have walked out with the maximum forty and
it just turns out that’s what happened.

Q. So what you’re saying is the twenty to thirty is an

educated guess as to the time? What I’m getting at, that

* wasn’t the offer you related to him was it?

A, No, it wasn’t the offer. I didn’t want him to get his
hopes up. He heard this number twenty to forty that he was
going to -— I knew that there was pretty much any chance he
was gonna walk out of there with twenty years at the time.
I just truly didn’t feel that was realistic. I really
tried to want to narrow him down to what I thought were the
most realistié possibilities.

I never said you’re gonna walk in and get between
these two numbers. You’re never gonna get twenty-five,
twenty to thirty years. I just kind of said this is
legally the minimum you can get; this is legally the
maximum you can kind of get. If we present these
mitigating factors, if we kind of lay these things out for
the judge, it’s probable that this is kind of what you’re
looking at in this range. But again anything is possible.

You could walk out of there with forty.
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Q. And so did he ever give you any indication that he
thought you promised him twenty to twenty—five years?

A, No. 1In fact I was pretty clear about it and honestly
at the time I knew this was coming one day and I wish I had
my actual file. I left private practice and I wasn’t able
to actually obtain it but as well as the plea affidavits
the prosecutor’s office makes defendant’s sign. We kind of
did my own where we laid out this is that he understood
that he was looking at twenty to forty and we kind of had
it in writing that he knew that anything was possible at
that point.

0. And do you believe pleading guilty was in his best

Ainterest in this case?

A There is absolutely no doubt in my mind that it was
in his best interest. I really really thought he did it.
He was a young man, he’s gonna walk out, walk out one day
and he’s gonna see daylight again. He was facing so so
many charges that he basically admitted to. That he was
looking at several life sentences before he set foot in a
courtroom on the murder charge. So he was looking at the
possibility of being LWOP’d twice without parole before we
éven went to trial on it because that’s basically what Mr.

Thompson told me that the State’s intent was. That they

. were gonna strike him out and then proceed with it.

So we truly were looking at —-- We were starting off

/
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with a very very very bad situation. . And so when we moved
into the actual murder case the evidence was pretty
overwhelming in that as well. There were neutral eye-
witnesses that were neighbors. There were his co-
defendant’s that basically flipped and they were gonna
testify against him. There were statements from victims
that were there. There were forensics that tied him to the
scene. It would a been — It would have been truly
astounding if he beat every single one of the charges that
he admitted to and then went and did the murder and wasn’t
facing a life sentence for murder and basically died behind
bars. So I thought this was in his best interest when they
offered it to him.

Q. Okay. And just a couple of more things. Before each
plea hearing did you ever tell him how he should answer the
judge’s questions?

A. Yeah, I did. I told him that he should tell the truth
whatever the truth may be and answer honestly. And that if
he didn’t understand anything to say that he didn’t
understand and usually the judges would allow either allow
us to talk about it there or step back and readdress the
issue before coming back in front of the judge. So, yeah,
I told him how he should answer. That whatever the
question was he should be truthful.

Q. Okay. And just lastly, as far as your investigation
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CROSS BY MR. SHELDON

is concerned was there anything, I guess, that you felt
like you were lacking that would have prevented you from
going to trial?
A. How so?
Q. Essentially he testified that he wanted to go to
trial. Would you have been ready to go to trial?
A, Absolutely. It would have been a series of trials.
I don’t know what they would have started off with first by
way of. I guess. the batting order of the trials, but I was
completely prepared. I had -- Basically this had really
shut down my practice for the most part and devoted a great
deal of time to it. I was ready to roll and I was willing
to do my best for him had we actually started going to
trial. But I didn’t think it was gonna turn out well for
him.
Q. Okay.

MR. HUNTER: Beg the Court’s indulgence for one second.

That’s all I have. Thank you, Mr. Burns.

MR. SHELTON: May it please the Court.

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

CROSS—-EXAMINATION

TYLER BURNS BY MR. SHELTON:
Q. Good morning, Mr. Burns. Have you had an opportunity
to read the transcripts in the case?

A. I read the transcripts from the sentencing hearing
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where there was essentially a plea to a second set of
charges and the sentencing for everything. The first
hearing was in front of Judge John Hayes. I hadn’t
reviewed any transcripts from that. There was a pretty
much all day probable cause hearing of which I don’t
believe there was any transcripts from. And there was thé
first plea hearing which I believe, if my memory serves, in

front of Judge Couch. I haven’t reviewed the transcripts

from that.

Q. You have or have not ---

A. I have not.

Q. --- reviewed the Judge Couch transcript?

A. I have not reviewed it.

Q. Okay. And that was that plea transcript and not the

-- to the first set of charges but no sentence; is that
right, on the Judge Couch transcript?

A. That's correct. They essentially wanted to —-- They
weren’t gonna let him delay any longer. They had to —-
They wanted him to either plea or not plea, to take the
deal or move to trial, so they allowed us to lock in the

actual entry of the plea and then defer the sentencing.

Q. You referenced in your testimony earlier that you
had -- You referenced a plea affidavit that you did I think
was through -- maybe through your -- that your office had

or your own personal policy and then also a plea affidavit
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that perhaps the State typically made you do; is that

right?
A. Yes.
Q. But in the transcripts, neither the first nor the

second transcript, is there any mention of any plea
affidavits being made Court Exhibits. Do you know if that
first, if the State’s Plea Affidavit was ever made a Court
Exhibit in this case? |

A. I don’t know if they ever were. I think they just
kind of got tacked onto the back of the sentencing sheets.
Mine I never — I’'d seen some attorneys that would enter it
as Court’s Exhibits. I pretty much just -- my hand —- It
was kind of scribbled that we would do before an actual
plea from both of us, I never entered ‘em. I just would
kind of keep ‘em for my file Jjust in case.

Q. And you said earlier that you want -- and I just

really want to focus on this relaying of the offer to Mr.

Emmanuel.
A. Okay.
Q. That you had relayed an offer of twenty to forty to

him but had essentially said twenty-five to thirty is
realistically what I’'m hoping for. 1Is that a fair
statement?

A. I think the way I said it was that that short absolute

best case scenario, that if your stars are alined, and all
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things kind of went in your favor that’s the top of the

mark what you’re looking at. I really didn’t want to build'
up any hope one.way or the other.

0. Did you -— Did you advise him that he was facing
possible consecutive time?

A. Yes.

Q. So —- And that -~ Perhaps that’s kind of what I want

to talk to you about and I’m gonna read something you said ’
on Page 31 of the September 29th, 2014 transcript which
would a been the actual sentencing transcript.

THE COURT: What page?

MR. SHELTON: And that’s page, 31, your Honor. And
this is gonna be it looks like lines one through sixish.
Q. And that would be “I advised him just to take these
ancillary charges because they were running concurrent and
basically had nothing else to lose for going down the road
for manslaughter.”

So, and my question to you is if you’re -— It seems
from what your statements to the court is that your
understanding was that these charges would all be running
concurrent to the most serious charge of manslaughter.

A. No, sir, not those. There was two sets of --
Basically two sets of pleas and one sentencing. What I
considered to be the ancillary charges I believe we

negotiated that they couldn’t be run consecutive and those




112

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

TYLER BURNS: CROSS BY MR. SHELDON -35-

were what I considered to be the ancillary charges were the
charges that where they stemmed from different factual
scenarios on different dates and different times. And they
were technically different cases cause this was essentially
many large cases wrapped up onto one humongous case.

And what I was referring to in that were that I
advised him of was the charges we enfered the first go
round that were negotiated to be concurrent charges we knew
were gonna be concurrent no matter what and there was -

The judge —- I believe Judge Couch could have either
accepted thelplea or‘denied the plea but couldn’t have
really restacked them against him on those.

That day was a whole different situation because we
had entered a néw plea to manslaughter, conspiracy, armed
robbery, possession of a firearm on that day in front of
Judge Edward Miller and there was a possibility with that
that they could have run consecutive.

Q. So from the Judge Miller transcript, which would be
the September transcript; the actual sentencing transcript,
you’re saying that those charges could be run consecutive
but when you were giving that statement to the Court you
were speaking of the charges that he had pled to prior?

A. Essentially yes. We had a judge that was taking a
sentencing but not the actual entry of the pleas. And

honestly if you read that whole transcript it was a pretty
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tough act to follow from the State’s presentation. And I
was kind of trying to put my own just introduction as to
how we got to that point with everything else that had
transpired to that point and all the other charges he was
facing.

Q. And have you —-- Have you handled — You’ve obviocusly
handled General Session cases in the past. This isn’t your
first General Sessions case; is that right?

A. Yeah, that’s correct. I was -- actually started off
as a prosecutor here in York.

Q. So now I want to talk about the relaying of the offer
as it pertains to the record; It seems like from reading
both transcripts the offer is put on the record by the
prosecutor at the beginning of each transcript in July and
then again in September. 1Is that fair to say?

A. I haven’t reviewed the actual entry of the first
transcript from Judge Couch but, I mean, from every case
I’'ve ever really dealt with I’ve never started off as a
defense attorney introducing what the plea offer would be.
It’s always been the state putting forth -

Q. But when —-- Would it -- Based on your experience in
General Sessions would it be your opinion that the court
would ask the defendant about the recommendations and
things like that and other than the recommendations have

you been promised anything or anything like that?
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A. If the court would ask Defense?

Q. Yes.

A. Pretty much every plea I’'ve ever seen, yes.

Q. But in this particular case and neither of these

pleas did a judge ever actually say what the offer was to
the defendant. It was only the solicitor at the beginning
of the plea. And if I’m not making sense just tell me.

A. I believe I think we basically if I remember correctly
we had kind of a chart that the prosecutor had prepared.
And you have to give me a second. I think it was an issue
with an indictment and a sentencing sheet that we had to
basically step back and fix during the middle of.the plea
or the sentencing with Judge Miller. And you've got the
transcript so correct me if I'm wrong, but I think that’s
what we had to basically deal with that issue.

And if my memory served me I think it was more along
the lines of you heard what the prosecutor said do you
agree with that type thing rather than the Judge rehash.
But I kind of want to —— I believe -- I could be mistaken
but I thought Judge Miller went over the maximums that each
one had and if he didn’t I believe he required they be
written on the sentencing sheets. So I don’t recall from
that exactly but I want to think it that it had been said
-— it was said by the judge in the plea.

Q. And so did you have conversations with Mr. Emmanuel’s
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family about this case?

A, Yes.

Q. Was that a point of contact for you?

A. Yes, sir.

0. And is part of this plea was it also — Was part of

the plea also to essentially get charges reduced or
dismissed for members of his family?

A. It was never quite relayed to me that way because,

I mean, that would have been a pretty dirty statement to
make by any prosecutor to say you know to kind of blackmail
any defendant that they’re gonna hold their family.hostage
with charges. But it was kind of a wink and a nod
situation that we were gonna lose interest in his family
and not make the victim’s family really involved in this if
we can wrap all this up at once.

Q. So that wasn’t —-- and not necessarily by any fault of
your own but was it packaged to the defendant that way as
part of the plea that your family will get reducéd charges
or the state will lose interest? I mean was that related
as part of an actual plea to these charges?

A. It was. I’'ve known -— I used to work with Mr.
Thompson and Mr. Epting and Ms. Holland here. They were
the three prosecutors on the case and they never have given
me reason to doubt what they said in the past so I never

had reason to doubt that they would double cross Mr.
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Emmanuel on this.

0. Did you hire an investigator in this case?

A. I did.

Q. Who was the investigator?

A, I -- Honestly I don’t recall. 1I’'m really bad with

names. I'm sorry, I don’t recall.

Q. Okay. And at what point in time did you hire the
investigator? Was it towards the beginning of the case;
towards the end of the case? -

A. It was relatively towards the beginning.

Q. You mentioned a Judge Hayes transcript, Judge John

Hayes transcript.

A. Correct.
Q. From a hearing that was not either of these
sentencing hearings. Did -- At that particular hearing

was that essentially a motion to withdraw the offer and set
the case for trial? II mean is that a fair assessment of
what occurred at that hearing?

A. No. That was a motion filed by me. And if you

listen to the audio tapes of his interview on all of these
other charges — Let me back up for one second. He was
originally being investigated for a series of warrants and
a couple of attempted murder charges before they really
focused on Mr. Emmanuel as the suspect in this murder case.

So he was originally brought in to the police department to
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speak to the detectives on what I considered to be the
ancillary charges to the murder.

Q. And, Mr. Burns, I'm sorry, I think that I was
confused. So that was essentially the civil motion you

referenced earlier, the Judge Hayes hearing?

A. It was. That was a hearing -

Q. Or a motion to enforce the deal basically. Or the
contract.

A. Yeah, I believe that based -- it was pretty clear on

the audio tapes that they said you tell us what happened
you be truthful and honest with you and you walk out of
here free, we’ll withdraw the warrant. I made a motion
that that was the deal that he relied on the deal and that
it should be enforced and the charges should be dismissed.
Q. So I guess my question is that was there every a point
in time, or was there ever a hearing where you were --
where there was a withdrawal of the offer on the record
where it was -- this case was in a trial posture as opposed
to a plea posture?

A, No. I think we were approaching that point when

they came off the murder to manslaughter.

Q. It’s it July 20 — the original July transcript in
front of Judge Couch would the case had been tried that
week or was that the drop dead to plea we’ll set for trial

at a later date?
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A. I believe -- It wouldn’t a been triedAthat week cause
I believe that they had pled the two co-defendants. A guy
Marquise Burris, I think, the day before so I think that
was the drop dead day to either plea or we’ll set it for a
trial.

MR. SHELTON: Your Honor, I beg the Court’s indulgence
for one second.

Judge, I don’t have any more questions.

THE COURT: Any redirect other than what he went
into?

MR. HUNTER: No, your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir. You may step down.

(WITNESS LEAVES WITNESS STAND.)

MR. HUNTER: The State has no more witnesses.

THE.COURT: Any reply?

MR. SHELTON: No, sir, your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. I’1l let you know.

MR. HUNTER: Thank you.

(COURT IN RECESS AT 10:54 AM.)
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. 0 Cg\d“-“{ 3C
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Attorney for: O Plaintiff O Defendant
Submitted by: O Self-Represented Litigant

DISPOSITION TYPE (CHECK ONE)
O  JURY VERDICT. This action came before the court for a trial by jury. The issues have been tried and a verdict rendered.
DECISION BY THE COURT. This action came to trial or hearing before the court. The issues have been tried or heard and a
decision rendered. O See Page 2 for additional information.

ACTION DISMISSED (CHECK REASON): O Rule 12(b), SCRCP; O Rule 41(a), SCRCP (Vol. Nonsuit);

O Rule 43(k), SCRCP (Settled); O Other: , N
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CIRCUIT COURT RULING IN THIS APPEAL.
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form may be a motion pursuant to the SC Rules of Civil Procedure. Amounts to be computed such as interest or
additional taxable costs i time the form and final order are submitted to the judge may be provided to the clerk.
Note: Title:abstractors / r£ should refer to the official court order for judgment details.
E-Filing N'@i—l?ili /theLourt will electrginically sign this form using a separate electronic signature page.
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
| | )  OF THE SIXTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF YORK )
) 2015-CP-46-2745
Abbdul Emmanuel, )
8.C.D.C. No. 350618, )
. ‘ ) et o
Applicant, ) _ ,
)  ORDER OF DISMISSAL. ‘< o B .
\ ) OB = &
e ) =035 2 O
State of South Carolina, ) ,_-_,3 L =5
| ) 59955% =
Respondent, ) zmﬁ E M
) wne 8 &
O = 5 o

This matter comes before the Court by way of an Application for Post-Conviction Relief
(PCR) filed September 11, 2015. Respondent made its Retwn on or about July 8, 2016. An
evidentiary hearing into-the matter was conveﬁcd on Wednesday, February -1, 2017, at the Moss '
Justice Center in York, South Carolina. Applicant was present at the heating and represented by
Nathari Sheldon, Esquire, Justin J, Hunter, Esquire, of the South Carolina Attorney General's
Office represented the Respondent, At the hearing, Applicant testified on his owii behalf. Tyler
Bums, Esquire, also testified. This Court also had before it a copy of the records of the York
County Clerk of Court regarding the subject convictions, Appﬁcaﬁfs records from the Séuth
Carolina Department of Corrections, the Return, and the plea transcripts,

L PROCEDURAL HISTORY
Applicant is presently confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant

to orders of commitment of the York County Clerk of Court, Applicant was indicted at the April

. 2014 term of General Sessions for murder (2014-GS-46-1220), possession of a weapon during

the commission of a violent crime (2014-GS-46-12204), armed robbery (2014-GS-46-1221),

possession of a weapon during the commission of & violent crime (2014-GS-46-1221A), criminal
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conspiracy (2014-GS-46-1222), and pointing/presenting a firearm (2014-GS-46-1223).
Applicant waived presentment to.the grand jury on the charges of criminal conspiracy (2014-GS-
46-1503), assault and battery of a high and aggravated nature (2014-(G8-46-2876), possassion of
a weapon during the commission of a violent orime (2014-GS-46-2876A), unlawful carrying of a
pistol (2014-GS-46-2884) and criminal conspiracy (2014-G8-46-2885).

Applicant was represented by Tyler Burns, Esquire, on these charges. On July 21, 2014,
Applicant and his plea-counsel-appeated before the Honorable Roger Couch and pled guilty to
voluntary manslaughter as a lesser included offense of muidé::,. possession of a weapon during
the commission of a violent crime, armed robbery, and one count of criminal conspiracy.
Sentencing was deferred to September 29, 2014. Applicant appeared on September 29,“2014,
before. the Honorable Edward Miller and pled guilty to the other charges as indicted, Applicant
was sentenced with all sen@ces.@ng.concmﬂy except armed robbery. His sentences are

as follows:

Voluntary Manslaughter (2014-G8-46-1220) 30 years

Possession of a Weapon During the Commission of a Violent | 5 years
Crime (2014-GS-46-1220A)

Armed Robbery (2014-G9-46-1221) 170 years (conseoutive)
'Possessi’_on of a Weapon During the Commission of a Violent | 5 years’

Crime (2014-GS8-46-1221A) .
Criminal Conspiracy (2014-GS-46-1222) , | 5years
Pointing/Presenting a Firearm (2014-G5-46-1223) 5 years

Criminal Conspiracy (2014-GS-46-1503) ’ 5 years

ABHAN (2014-GS-46-2876) 20 years

Possession of 2 Wesdpon During the Commission of a Violentr 5 years
Crime (2014-GS-46-28764A) :

Unlawful Carrying of a Pistol (2014-GS-46-2884 1 year

Criminal Conspiracy (2014-GS-46-2883) 5 years

Page2 of 10 g§;
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Applicant did not file a notice of appeal.
PCR Allegations
In his application, Applicant alleges he is being held in custody unlawfully for the
following reasons:
1. Ineffective Assistance of Counsel

a. Failure to object to sentencing phase
b. Failure to investigate

- Applicant dlso lists in his application, "I was promised that if I took the plea thiat I
wouldn’t receive 'no mote' than 20-25 years, I would like to vacate current sentence and
remand for new trial."

. SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE PRESENTED AT PCR HEARING
Applicant's Testimony
Applicant testified that he met with Mr. Burns (hereinafter *Counsel") four to five times

after his arrest. He testified that he did not have a good relationship with Counsel and did not

review discovery. He testified that the first plea offer he received was for forty-five years, which

he rejected. Applicant testified that he received a final offer, and Counsel told him it would be
twenty to twenty-five years. Applicant testified that he wanted to go to trial 'but was coerced to
take the plea: Applicant testified that Counsel hired an investigator but he only spoke with this
invastigat_o; on one occasion. ‘
Counsel Tyler Burns' Testimony

 Counise] testified that he met with Applicant several times; He testified that there were &
large number of charges pending, including five additional attempted murder charges that were
eventially dropped. He testified that he received discovery and reviewed it with Applicant,
including five DVDs of information, recordings of his statements, and pho’éos, Counsel testified

that Applicant admitted a great deal in his statement and there were multiple neuiral
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eyewitnesses implicating Applicant, Counsel testified that Applicant assisted in his own defénse
but Counsel was weary about his alibi. He testified that he devoted a great deal of time to
Applicant's case, which included hiring an investigator to.look at the timeline of events that the
State was alleging occurred. ‘

Counsel t’esﬁﬁéd that this was not Applicant's first ran-in with the criminal justice system
and believed he was very fumiliar with the process. ﬁe- testified that the evidence against
seek a life without parole sentence. Counsel testified that he was able to leverage a civil case by
Applicant against the police department to get the State to agree to drop the murder charge to
voluitary manslaughter.

Counsel testified that the first plea offer he received was for around forty to fifty years,
He tesﬁﬁed that Applicant rejected this offer and wanted to pursue a trial. He testified that the
final plea offer was for a recommendation of twenty to-forty years, which was placed on the
record by the State »-dx;ring the ‘plea hearing. He testified that the plea offer alsp included a
reduction from murder to voluntary manslanghter, and the dismissal of many other charges.
Counse] also testified that part of the plea offer was that it was understood certain charges
against Applicant’s family members would be dropped.

Counsel testified that he did not promise Applicant on the amount of time he would
receive, but told Applicant» thet he thought the best-case scenatio -wouid.wsult in a range of
twenty to twenty-five years. Counsel testified that Applicant wanted t6 know exact:lyhow much
time he would receive, but Counsel again explained to him that he could not guarantee what he
would receive and could only give an educated guess. He further testified that he did his own

plea affidavits for his clients at the time that explained the client's rights and the plea offer.

\
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HI. APPLICABLE LAW

In a post-conviction relief action, the Applicant bears the burden of proving the

ailegations in their application. Butler v; State, 286 8.C. 441, 334 S.E.2d 813 (1985). Where the
application alleges ineffective assistance of counsel as a ground for relief, the Applicant must
prove that “counsel's conduct s0 undermmed the proper futictioning of the adversarial process
that the trial cannot be relied upon. as having produced a just result.” iS.trickland v. Washington,
466 U.8, 668, 104 8. Ct. 2052;"2;064; 80 L.Ed.2d ’674, 692 (1984); Butler, 334 S.E.2d 813.

The proper measure of performance is whether the attorney provided x‘epre‘s"e@tioh
within the range- .of competenice required in criminal cases. The courts presumie that coﬁnsel\
rendered adequate assistance and made all significant decisions in the exercise of reasonable
pr_éfessi_onal judgment, Strickland; 466 U.S. 668, _A’pplicant-fmust overcome this. prcsmpﬁon in
order to receive relief. Cherry v. S:t,atg, 300 8.C. 115, 386 S.E:2d 624 (1989)..

Courts use a two-pronged test in evaluating allegations of ineffective assistance of
counisel, Id. at 117, 386 S.E.2d 6t 625. First, the applicant must prove counsel's performance was
deficient, Id. Under this prong, courts measure an attorney's performance by its "reasonableness
under prevailing professional norms." Id. (citing Strickland, 466 U.S, at 688). Second, any
deficient performance must have prejudiced the applicant such that “there: is a reasonable
probability that, but for counsel’s unprofessional etrors, the result of the proceeding would rhavé
be;n: different.” Id. at 117-18, 386 S.E.2d at 625, With respect to guilty plea coungel, the
Applicant must show there is a reasonable probebility that, but for counsel's alleged errors, he

would not have pled guilty and would have insisted on going to tial. Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S.

-
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IV.  FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
This Court has reviewed the testimony presented at the evidentiary hearing, observed the

witnesses presented at the hearing, passed upon their credibility, and weighed the testimony

accordingly, Further, thls Court has reviewed the Clerk of Court records regarding the subject

convictions, the guilty plea transcripts, Applicant's records from the South Carolina Department
. of Corrections, the application for post-conviction relief, and the legal arguments made Ey the
attorneys. Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann, § 17-27-80 (2003); this Court makes the following
findings of fact based upon all of the probative evidence presented.

As a matter of general impression, this Court finds Applicant's testimony and assertions
to be not credible. In cantrast, this Court finds Counsel's tést?mony to be credible and persuasive
on all matters. These credibility. findings have been applied to the Court’s findings and
conclusions set forth below.

Ineffective Assistance of Counsel

Applicant alleges Counsel was ineffective regarding his guilty plea. This Court finds that

Applicant failed to meét his burden of proving that his plea counsel was ineffective. This Court

finds Applicant's attorney demonstrated the normal degree -of skill, _knowlédge, professional

judgment, and representation that are expected of an aitorney who practices criminal law in‘

South Carolina. State v. Pendergrass, 27d 8.C. 1, 239 S.E.2d 750 (1977); Strickland, 466 U.S. at -

668; Butler, 286 8.C. 441, 334 S.E.2d 813,

An applicant who pleads. guilty on the advice of counsel may collaterally attack the plea
only by showing that (1) counsel was ineffective and (2) there is a reasonable probabhility that but
for counsel's errors, the applicant would not have pled guilty and would have insiste;:i on going to

trial. Roscoe v. State, 345 S.C. 16, 20, 546 S.E.2d 417, 419 (2001) (eitations omitied). An
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applicant alleging his guilty plea was induced by ineffective assistarice of counse} mustprove
that counsel's advice. was riot "within the range of competence demanded of attomeys in criminal
cases." Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52, 56, 106 §. Ct. 366,369 (1985). To find a guilty plea is
voluntarily and knowingly entered into, the record must establish the defendant hed a full
understanding of the consequences of his. plea and the charges against him, 'dekin v, Alabama,
395U.8. 238, 89.8. Ct. 1709, 23 L.Ed.2d 274 (1969).
ﬁ;ailure to Investigate

Applicant alleged that Counsel was ineffective for failing to investigate. “[Clriminel
defense attorneys  have a duty to undertake a reasonable investigation, which at -a minimum
includes interviewing potential witnesses and making an indepencient investigation of the facts

and circumstarices of the case.” Walker v, State, 397 S.C. 226, 235, 723 8.E.2d 610, 615 (Ct.

App. 2012). "Failure to conduct an independent investigation does not constitute ineffective
assistance of counsel when ;the allegaﬁonA is supported only by mere speculation as fo result.”
Porter v. State, 368 S.C. 378, 385-86, 629 S.E.2d 353, 357 (2006) (citing Moorehead v, State,
329:8.C. 329, 334, 496 S.B.2d 415, 417 (1998))..

This Court finds. that Counsel performed a proper investigation into the facts and law
during his representation of A’ppl_icént, This representation inicluded the instigation of legal
proceedings that foréed the Staté to reduce the murder charge to manSlaug_hter. Counsel also.
reduced Applicart's 'cxpoéur'e by getting the State to drop numerous other »charées ag part of the
plea negotiations. This Court finds that during the PCR hearing, Counsel appeared believable
and credible in his éxplanation of his investigation into the facts of the case. Applicant has failed

also failed to show that he was prejudiced by Counsel's actions as he has failed to show what.

o
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additicnal investigation would have uncovered and that he would have proceeded to trial but for
Counsel's actions. Accordingly, this allegation must be dismissed.
| Plea Advice

After conducting the hearing, and. reviewing the transcript of the gmlty pleas before
Judges Couch and Miller, this Court caninot find that applicant has met his burden of proof of
establishing that his plea counsel was ineffective in his advice to Applicatit concerning the guilty
plea, While the forty-year total sentencé imposed By Judge Miller was substantial, the sentence
was in the range originally recommendéd and annouriced on the record by the State during the
first hearing before Jnudge Couch. This Court finds that Counsel rélayed the plea offer
recominendation of twenty fo forty years and did not promise or guatantee a specific amount of
time that Applicé.nt would receive. This Court finds that Applicant's belief that he would receive
a sentence betweeén twenty and twenty-five years does not change the fact:that he wag well
informed from Counsel prior to the plea and from the plea judge during the plea hearing that the
recommendation. ﬁqm the State was twenty to forty years. See Wolfe v. State, 485 S.E.2d 367,
371, 326 S.C. 158, 165 (1997) (Wishful thinking regarding semtencing does not equal a
misapprehensioni concerning the possible range of sentences, especially where one acknowledges
on the record that one knows the ranige of sentences and that no promises have been made), The
record also reflects that Applicant was well aware that the plea judge did not havé to aceept the
State's recommendation, Accordingly, this Court finds that Counsel was nof ineffective regarding.
his advice surfounding Applicant's to guilty plea,

Furthermore, this Court finds that Applicant has failed to show that hie was prejudiced by
Counsel's actions because Applicant has failed to show that he otherwise would have elected to

go 1o trial, and has not shown any error in Counsel's assistance that led him to plead guilty
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instead. Therefore he cannot prove any prejudice. Accord_ingly;. this. allegation is denied and
dismissed with prejudice, |
All Other Allegations
As to any and all allegations that were raised in the application or at the hearing in this
matter and not -‘speciﬁcany;addressed: in this Order, this Court finds Ap‘pl'ic_aht, failed to present
any testimony, argument, or evidence at the-hegring'rega;dmg such allegations. Accordingly, this-
Court finds Applicant has abandoned any such allegations.
V.  CONCLUSION
Based on the foregoing, the Court finds and concludes Applicant has not established any
constitutional violatioris or deprivations that would require this Court to grant his application.
Al;plicant failed fo demo'nsma:te counsels' performance was unreasonable under prevailing

professional norms, Cherry, 300 S.C_._at"117-18, 386 8.E.2d at 625; Stalk v, State, 383-8.C. 559,

563, 681 S.E:2d 592, 594-(2009). Therefore, this application for post-conviction relief must be

denied and dismissed with prejudice.
The Cotirt niotes Applicant must file and serve a notice of appeal within thirty (30) days

from PCR counsel's receipt of ‘written notice of entry of judgment to secure the appropriate

appellate review. See Rule 203, SCACR. Pursuant to Austin v. State, 305 8.C. 453, 409 SB2d

395 (1991); Applicant has-a right to appellate counsel's assistance in seeking review of the denial

of post-conviction relief, Rule 71.1(g), SCRCP, provides that if Applicant wishes to seek

appellate review, PCR counsel must serve and file a notice of appeal on Api»li’éant"é behalf,

Applicant is directed to South Carolina Appellate Court Rule 243 for appropriate procedures for

-appeal,
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IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:

1, The application. for Post-Conviction Relief i 1s denied and dlsnussed
with prejudice; and

2. Applicant will remain in the custody of the South Carolina Department
of Cotrections to complete service of his sentence.

AND IT IS SO'ORDERED this _ day of , 2017,

Sixteenth Judicial Circuit

‘\{O Y™ South Caroline
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT
)
COUNTY OF YORK )

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on April 17, 2014, the Grand Jurors of York

County present upon their oath:

COUNT 1 - MURDER
Abbdul Omar Emmanuel did in York County on or about January 10,
2014, feloniously, willfully and with malice aforethought, kill one Michael
Giddens by means of shooting him and Michael Giddens died as a result
‘thereof, all in violation of Section 1 6-3-10, Code of Laws of South Carolina
(1976), as amended. The Murder occurred at or near 1167 Cedar Grove
Lane in the City of Rock Hill, South Carolina.

COUNT 2 - POSSESSION OF A FIREARM DURING THE
CONMMISSION OF A VIOLENT CRIME
Abbdui Omar Emmanuel did on or about January 10, 2014, possess a
firearm while committing the violent crime of murder in York County, South
Carolina, all in violation of Section 16-23-490, dee of Laws of South
Carolina, (1976), as amended

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case

made and provided.
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WITNESSES

__RHPD./Welch

DOCKETNO.  2014-G$46- 01221
Dir. Ind. 2014-GS46- 01221a

The State of South Garolina
County of York

After being fully: advised:as to my legali
rights, [ hereby Waive presentment to:
the:Grand Jury.

' 'De'fendant

vel

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER

.. COUNT 1 -2014A4620304011
_COUNT 2 - Dif: Ind.-Re: 2014A4620304010

;

ACTION OF GRAND JURY
TRUE BILL

f -of G dJ'ury .Y.
(7220

VER_DI_.CT

Foreperson|of Patit Jury
Date;

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

APRIL 17, TERM 2014

THE STATE

VS,

ABBDUL OMAR EMMANUEL

H

Indictment for

COUNT 1 — ARMED ROBBERY
SC-Codeé: § 16-11-0330
CDR Code: 0139

COUNT 2.~ POSSESS!ON OF A
FIREARM DURING THE COMMISSION
OF A VIOLENT CRIME

SC:Code: 16-23-0450.
CDR Code 0549

L

hereby appearin my-own proper person and plead.

guilty to the within indictment or to

xﬁkéz%&/ S n P

- Defendanit
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) INDICTMENT
)
COUNTY OF YORK )

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on April 17, 2014, the Grand Jurors of

York County present upon their oath:

COUNT 1~ ARMED ROBBERY

Abbdul Omar Emmanuel did in York County on or about January 10,
2014, feloniously steal a shotgun from Michae! Giddens while at 1167
Cedar Grove Lane in Rock Hill, South Carolina. Abbdul Omar Emmanuel
stole said item by means of force or intimidation by holding Michael
Giddens at gunpoint. Abbdul Omar Emmanuel committed this robbery
while armed with a deadly weapon in violation of Section 16-11-0330, Code
of Laws of South Carolina, (1976), as amended.

COUNT 2 - POSSESSION OF A FIREARM DURING THE
COMMISSION OF A VIOLENT CRIME
Abbdul Omar Emmanuel did on or about January 10, 2014, possess a
firearm while committing the violent crime of Armed Robbery in York
County, South Caroliina, all in violation of Section 16-23-490, Code of Laws

of South Carolina, (1976), as amended

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such

case made and provided.,

2w

~DEPUTY SOLEITOR




WITNESSES

e —————
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RHPD / Quate

DOCKET NO. 2014-GS46- 01222

The State of South Carolina
County of York

——

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

APRIL 17, TERM 2014

After being fully advised as to'my
legal rights, | hereby waive presentment.
to thie Grand Jury.

Déefendarit

ocl

hereby appear in my own proper person:and plead'

guilty-to the within indictrient or-to

2014A4620304012

ACTION OF GR@:&? JURY

7 { A/ P
' ofGrand{I;zy

VERDICT

THE STATE

ABBDUL OMAR EMMANUEL

Foreperson
Date:

of Petit Jury:

Indlctment for

CRIMINAL CONSPIRACY

SC Code: 16-17-410
CDR Code:0049

Bblcdot  Ean

—————

Defendant’
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) INDICTMENT
)
COUNTY OF YORK ' )

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on April 17, 2014, the Grand Jurors of

York County present upon their oath:

CRIMINAL CONSPIRACY

Abbdul Omar Emmanuel did in York County on or about January 10,
2014, wilifully, knowingly, and feloniously unite, combine, conspire,
confederate, agree or have tacit understanding with Maurice Burris and/or
Dontavion Qua'mek White for the pdrpose of cbmmitting the crime of
Armed Robbery against Michael Giddens while at 1167 Cedar Grove Lane
“in the City of Rock Hill, South Carolina, all in violation of Section 16-17-410,
Code of Laws of South Carolina, (1978), as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such

VT

/ DEPUTY S%CITOR

case made and provided.




i WITNESSES

RHPD / Quate

DIRECT
DOCKET NO. 2014-GS46- 01880

The State of South Carolina

County of York

——

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

JUNE 19, TERM 2014

After being fully advised as to my legal
rights, | hereby waive presentment to
the Grand Jury.

Defendant

8¢cl

i

hereby appear in my own proper person and
plead guilty to the within indictment or to

Direct Indictment

ACTION OF GRAND JURY

S Y T Y] E]
U

i

¢ Zo ép%/éi/ 'e/rsq(:n/ajgf‘r énd ﬁ‘% @ L2

VERDICT

THE STATE

VS.

ABBDUL OMAR EMMANUEL

Defendant

Witness:

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

Indictment for

BURGLARY FIRST DEGREE

~

SC Code: 16-11-311
CDR Code: 0079

C.C.C. PLS. AND G.S.



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) - INDICTMENT
)
COUNTY OF YORK )

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on June 19, 2014, the Grand Jurors of York

County present upon their oath:

BURGLARY FIRST DEGREE

Abbdul Omar Emmanuel did in York County on or about January 10,
2014, willfuily and unlawfully enter the dwelling of Michael Giddens located
at 1167 Cedar Grove Lane in the City of Rock Hill, South Carolina. Abbdul
Omar Emmanuel ente_réd without consent by using deception, artifice, trick,
or misrepresentation to gain consent to enter, and he entered with the intent
to commit a crime therein. At some point during the commission of the
- crime, - Abbdul Omar Emmanuel, or another -participant in the crime
committed one or more of the following acts: 1. He was armed with a
deadly weapon; 2. He caused physical injury to a person who was not a
participant in the crime; 3. He used or threatened the use of a dangerous
instrument; and/or 4. He displayed a firearm or what appeared to be a
firearm. Al In violation of Section 16-11-311, Code of Laws of South

Carolina (1978), as amended.

- Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case

made and provided.
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ACTION OF GRAND JURY

_sgeran 6B S9iE B

g
T DIRECT
WITNESSES DOCKET NO. 2014-GS46- 01881
RHPD / QUATE The State of South Carolina
County of York
COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
" JUNE 19, TERM 2014
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
Direct Indictment THE STATE
» VS.

ABBDUL OMAR EMMANUEL

After being fully advised as to my
legal rights, | hereby waive presentment
to the Grand Jury.

Defendant

0)4"

hereby appear in my own proper person and plead
guilty to the within indictment or to

Defendant

Witness:

B b e SvEtstes

. Indictment for
repesson ér n:1 ry :
f//?/%f ATTEMPTED MURDER
¢ / :
VERDICT SC Code: § 16-03-0029
CDR Code: 3410
Foreperson 6f Petit Jury

Date:

C.CC.PLS.AND G.S.
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT
COUNTY OF YORK )

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on June 19, 2014, the Grand Jurors of York

County present upon their oath:

ATTEMPTED MURDER '

Abbdul Omar Emmanuel did in York County on or about January 10,
2014, felonlously, willfully and with malice aforethought either expressed or
implied, attempt to kill Rafael Renta by means of shooting at Rafael Renta
with the intent to kill him; all in violation of Section 16-03-0029, Code of
Laws of South Carolina (1978, 2010), as amended. This occurred at or near
1167 Cedar Grove Lane in the City of Rock Hill, South Carolina.

Against the peace and dignity of the Stats, and contrary to the statute in such case

VBT i

PUTY SOLICHFOR

made and provided.
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ATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
"OUNTY OF York : ;
VS. 3 INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2014-GS46-01220
Abbdul Omar Pmmanuel _ A/WE:  __2014A4620304002
: - LERFIFED TR jg GERRof Ofense: _1/10/2014
Race: BLACK Sex: M Afﬁ 20, S.C.Code § :_16-03-0050
DOB: Ss#: 2 KoY =2 FM; bt QBR coges: 0217
Address: . Pebble Road
City,State.Zip: - Rock Hill. SC 29730 f’ﬁ?. U HAMILT BN
; ot g SENTENCE SHEET .
DL#: SID# _SC 020183 it COURT -
*CDL Yes []No [] CMVYes [JNo [] Haznfafvet FRISR 786 @QEGENAL
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was [} CONVICTED OF or XIPLEADS
TQ: Manslaughter / Voluntary manslanghter
in violation of § 16-03-0050 ____of'the S.C, Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0217
[ NON-VIOLENT [X] VIOLENT []JSERIOUS [X]MOST SERIOUS [[JMandatory GPS(CSC [1§17-25-45
. w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)
Thechargeis:.  []AsIndicted,  [X]Lesser Included Offense, [T]Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)
The plea DWlﬂaout Negotiations or Recommendation, [J Negotiated Sentence, oommendanon by the State,
Bl > rnnges é548 @gﬁ Z7J1=
SC Bar# Defendant ey for Defendant SC Bar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the []] State Department ofCorrections, [7] County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of 3 @ Geysfmontis/years or [J underthe  Youthful Offender Act . not to exceed ] years
andfor to pay a fine of § ; provided that upon the sprvice of days/months/years and/or payment
of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for
months/years and subjéct to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardbn Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference. - .
* [J CONCURRENT or (] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: ]
The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursnant to S.C. Code ~ § 24-13-40 to be calenlated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections. _§~7 /) A7
[ The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant-to S.C. Code §17-25-135.
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.
SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[JRESTITUTION: ~ [[] Deferred [ ] Def. Waives Hearing Clorderea  pryP
. Total: § ' plus 20% fee: __ 3 days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: . - Obtain GED 0]
[ Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab, or Job Corp,
— - May serve W/E begining
Recipient: = _ i Substance Abuse Counseling O
*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing O
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
_ § 14-1-211(AX(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 § {00 pmts.of§ _____  beginning
§14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 § . . :
§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) s12 S $ __ _ paidto Public Defender Fund ‘
§ 56-1-286 (DUT Breath Test) $25 S - Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 $
8§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $ a5
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 $
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 .3
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea $ (0 Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $ b § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%toCounty  (if paid in hlstallments) $ during probation.
TOTAL 5130 : | 7
n B Presiding Judge ¢ F w"
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk SO O Judge Code: U DO A

Court Reporter: )81 Sentence Date: G- - &

SCCA217 (0312011)
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)& OF SOUTH CAROLINA > IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

AT )
> COUNTY OF York ; : :
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2014-GS46-01220A
Abbdul Omar Emmanuel - AIWi#: _2014A4620304010
AKA: bi:R TJP':- ) TRUE OORiroffense: 17102014
Race: BLACK Sex: M s C.Code § :_16-23-0490
DOB: __ SS#:_ anﬁ HW =2 P B codes: 0549
Address: . Pebble Roz Road
City State.Zip: - Tﬁﬁﬂ HM : LTEM
b _ _ iLERNDF ¢ LTURETRAL
*CDL Yes [ JNo [] CMVYes [JNo [] Hazmat V¢ ' X
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was [] CONVICTED OF or [XIPLEADS
TO: Weapons / Possession of weapon during violent crime, if not also sentenced to life without parole or death
inviolationof  § 16-23-0450 of the 8.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0549
NON-VIOLENT [0 VIOLENT []SERIOUS [CJMOST SERIOUS [[IMandatory GPS(CSC [1817-25-45
’ : w/minor 1st or Lewd Act) :
The charge is: AsIndicted,  [T]Lesser Included Offense, [Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)
The plea is; _[JWithout Negotiations or Recommendation, 7] Negotiated Sentence, [X] Recommendation by the State.
A 1 — ;
<. 6548 25>

pson, WalterAV. . SC Bar# Defendant mey for Defendant .- SCBar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the [0 State Department of Correc [0 County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of 5'_ deRimSats/years or (] underthe  Youthful Offendet Act not to exceed years:
and/or to pay a fine of § 5 provided that upon the service of : fdays/months/years and/or payment
of § ; plus costs and assessmeits as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.

" [J° CONCURRENT or [] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to 8.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections. L J 7 oA :
I7] The Defendant is to be placed.on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Sec.tion 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:;
CIRESTITUTION:  [[] Deferred [ | Def. Waives Hearing [Jorderea  PTUP
Total: § plus 20% fee: : $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED M
[J Setby SCDPPPS ‘Attend Voc, Rehab. or Job Corp.
— - May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling a
*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing O
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monﬂlly
§ 14-1-211(AX(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 $ \00 . pmts. of § beginning
§ 14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 $ .
§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessme)  m 3 $  paidto Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 8 Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 $
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $ A5
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 $
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) 850 _ %
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40fa _§ [J Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) 85 $§ 5 § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%toCounty  (if paid in installments) $ during probation.
o | — -
. . Presiding Judge ZQ—*/ w ’ W
GcorcomtDepuyClerk  ONA Duendben | jureode . DAV <
Court Reporter; M—(\ (o i . Sentence Date: Q ~-29-14

SCCA/217 (03/2011)
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. 0:F SOUTH CAROLINA ) N THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
ACOUNTY OF _ York )
/ STATE . VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2014-GS46-01221
Abbdul Omer Bennarf§T R T | FIFD TRUE )C@W# 2014A4620304011 '
AKA:  Dateof Offense: _1/10/2014
Race:  BLACK Sex: M 2935 NOU -2 PM ;l Okc.code § :_16-11-03300a)
poB: Ut T 8s#: T T X 0139
Address: PebbleRoad U f\V IH ﬁWLTh N CDR Code . -
City,State.Zip:  Rock Hill. SC 29730 F .G@ 5 N N&@ s N Al
DLE: i ' Tse SENJENGE'S !
*CDL Yes []No [] CMVYes [JNo [] HazmatYes [JNo []
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was . [] CONVICIED OF or XIPLEADS
TO: Robbery / Armed Robbery, robbery while armed or allegedly armed with a deadly weapon )
in violation of § 16-11-0330(A) of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0139
[] NON-VIOLENT VIOLENT [ ]SERIOUS  [XJMOST SERIOUS [JMandatory GPS(CSC []6§17-25-45
: ' : w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)

Thechargeis:  [X] AsIndicted, [ ]Lesser Included Offense, ]:] Defendant Wawes Presentment to Grand Jury (defendant's initials)
The plea is: [} Without Negotiations or Recommendation, Negohated Sentence, Recommendation by the State.,

:‘%% £s7/8 m%@mé el = 7S
, pson, Walter W ) . SC Bar# efendant ttorney for Defendant SCB -

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the [c] State Department of Co ons, [ County Detention Center,

for a determinate term of / Q deysferonths/yearsor ' [] underthe  Youthful Offender Act = not to exceed . years
and/or to pay a fine of $ yprovided that upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment

of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation  for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Pamle and Pardon Services standard conditions of
_probation, which are incorporated bye{:

] CONCURRENT or CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: .

[ The Defendent is to be given credit for txme served pm-suant t0 S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections. o J72

[ The Defendant is to be placed on the Centra] Regmry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code . §17-25-135.

Parsuant to 18 Us.C Sectlon 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,iransport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition;

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
‘(IRESTITUTION:  [] Deferred [ ] Def. Waives Heatlng [(OJordered  pTUP
Total: § : plus 20% fee: $ —___ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED n
[J Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp
| — May serve W/E begining
Recipient: : : Substance Abuse Counseling O
*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcoho testing |
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
g 1121122]111((3((21)) ((;:g;vé mmie) $10 - $ {00 pmts. of $ . beginning
. - €, © §100 . . :
§ 56-5.2995 (DUL Assessmentf 512 : 8 paidto Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 § Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 b
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $ 45
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 $
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50  _ § ] )
§ 56-5-2542(J) (Vehicle Assessment) §40/ea $ - " [0 Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,’
Proviso 90.5 (SCCIA Surcharge) '$5 $ b § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%toCounty  (if paid in inétallments) $ during probation,
TOTAL $

D Presiding Judgé @ s W Z
Clerk ofCovaeputy cnerk _(_AM[\ Judge Code:  N\DD
Court Reporter: Qo o\ Q\u‘\'\ (AP Sentence Date: Lf—a‘%-l = .

SCCAR17 (03201 l)
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« - %k OF SOUTH CAROLINA > ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY OF York ; o
STATE Vs, ) INDICTMENTICASE#: 2014-GS46-01222

Abbdul Omar Emmanuel ) AWE:  _2014A4620304012
AKA: : CEF{ TIEIED TRUEGERorOffnse: _1/102014
Race: BLACK Sex: M S. C Code § :;_16-17-0410
DOB: Ss#: Zﬂ 1§ it Grcodes: _ 0049
Address: _ Pebble Road ) .
City,State,Zip: ~ Rock Hill SC 29730 BAYID HAMY -TQN NG

) TE

DL#: SID#:  _sC 02018634, BRI @F ¢ . ( SENTENCESHRET |
*CDL Yes [JNo [] CMVYes [INo [] HezmWibiai [CIOUNETL-SE
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was [J CONVICTED OF or [XIPLEADS
TO: Conspiracy / Criminal Conspiracy, Conimon Law conspiracy defined '

inviolationof - § 16-17-0410 of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0049

NON-VIOLENT [0 VIOLENT [JSERIOUS [(JMOST SERIOUS _ [JMandatory GPS(CSC []817-25-45
w/minor Ist or Lewd Act)

Thechargeis:  [X] As Indicted, DLessér Included Offense, [}Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)

The plw is: [[] without Negotiations or Recommendation, [ Negotiated Sentence, Recommendation by the State,
‘Z%Wm BENSE ot el e i
pson, Walte,

-8C Bar# Defendant (__~ JAttormey for Defendant - = SCBa#
WHEREFORE the Defendant is commited to the I:I State Department of Corrections, [0 County Detention Center,

for a determinate term of 3 mnﬁs/years or [0 under the " Youthful Offender Act notto exceed years
and/or to pay a fine of $ ; provided that upon the serviceof ] days/monthslyears and/or payment

of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable¥; the balance is suspended with probation for .

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
ﬁ?ﬂﬁ{; which are incorporated by reference.

NCURRENT or [] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: . . )
The Defendant is to be given oredit for time served pursuant to S.C, Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections. 5 72 JATS ‘
[C] The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammuaition.

' SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[JRESTITUTION: [ ] Deferred [ ] Def, Waives Hearing [T ordered  PTUP:
Total: §. - __ plus 20% fee: $ : __ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: . Obtain GED D
[J Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
— . May serve W/E begining
Recipient: . : Substance Abuse Counseling O
*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing O
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $10 S5 0D pmts. of $ beginning
. §14-1-211(AX(2) (DUI Surchar, $100 j . .
: g 56 5_29(9 S)éD)él Asses-smenge) s12 : $  paidto Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUT Breath Test) $25 Otber: :
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 $ '
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 8 AH
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Coust Surcharge) oS50 g
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 .3
§ 56-5-2942(7) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/a § [ Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $ b § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%toCounty  (if paidin installments) $ during probation.
T Yo
. : u
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk \) Qdon fjgf';f'é’fdi;dgeal S
Court Reporter: . Sentence Date: Q-2 U

SCCA/217(03/2011)



DOCKET NO. 2014-GS-46- 02876

2014-GS46-02876 (A)

The State of South‘ Carolina
County of York

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

September11, Term 2014

|
|
: —
; | WITNESSES
RHPD\Thomas
_sgh
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
Count One:|'2014A4620303950:
_Count Twwo:| 2014A462030951
AGTION OF GRAND JURY"

Foreperson
Dafer

of Grand Jury-

VERDIGT

Foreperson
Date:

of Petif Jury:

THE STATE

VS.

ABBDUL OMAR EMMANUEL

Indictment for
COUNT ONE:
ATTEMPTED MURDER.
SC Code: 16-03-029
CDR Codé: 3410

COUNT TWO

POSSESSION OF A WEAPON DURING THE

COMISSION OF A VIOLENT CRIME
SC Code: 16-23-490
CDR Code: 549

After'biging fully advised as'to:my
legal rights, 1 hereby waive presentment
to’ the Grand Jury

Defendant

<

I.
hereby'appear in my own proper personand plead
guilty to:the within indictment or'to

ABLAN

Kb A En.

Defendant

AT - /
.

/ DcEypts. AND ciivn

ovl



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) INDICTMENT

- )
COUNTY OF YORK )

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on Séptember 11, 2014, the Grand
Jurors of York County present upon their oath:

OUNT ONE: ATTEMPTED MURDER

The Defendant, Abbdul Omar Emmanuel, did in York County, South Carolina, on
or about January 12, 2014. feloniously, wilfully and with malice aforethought attempt to
Murder one Tavious Truesdale by shoéting at said victim with a handgun, all in violation
of Section 16—1-80,‘ Code of Laws of South Carolina, (1976, as amended).

COUNT TWO: POSSESSION OF A WEAPON DURING THE
COMMISSION OF A VIOLENT CRIME

The Defendant, Abbdul Omar Emmanuel, did in- York County on or about
January 12, 2014, while committing the crime of Attempted Murder, a crime of violence,
have in his possession or did take into his possession a gun, all in violation of Section
16-23-490, Code of Laws of South Carolina, (1976, as amended).

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such

case made and provided. '
NS,

~  ASSISTANT\SOHICITOR
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WITNESSES

RHPD 7 Thomas.

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER.

DOCKET NO. 2014-G846- (S IREH

The State of South Carolina
" County of York

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

SEPTEMBER 15, TERM 2014:

After being fully advised as‘to'my legal

nghts I'hereby waive: presentment to
the Grand J ury. .

2 Bl b

Defendant

heréby -appear i my own propef person and plead

guiitty to the within’ lndlctment orte

2014A4620303952

THE STATE.

VS.

ABBDUL OMAR EMMANUEL.

ACTION OF GRAND-JURY'
~Foreperson of Grand Jury
_.Date:
VERDICT
Forepérson of Petit. Jury:
Date:

Indi¢tment for

WEAPONS / UNLAWFUL CARRYING
OF PISTOL

SC.Cade: § 16:23-0020, 0050(A)(2)
CDR Cdde: 0044

%M,‘/ @/b\ﬂwj

Defendant

8yl



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
INDICTMENT
COUNTY OF YORK

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on September 15, 2014, the Grand

Jurors of York County present upon their oath:

WEAPONS / UNLAWFUL CARRYING OF PISTOL

The defendant, Abbdul Omar Emmanuel did in York County, on or about January
9, 2014, willfully and unlawfully carry about his person a handgun, whether concealed or
not. All in violation of §16-23-20 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1876) as

amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such

case made and provided.

Z

CHRISTOPHER W. EPTI
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WITNESSES

RHPD / Thomas

Al

RREST WARRANT NUMBER

2014A4620303955

ACTION OF GRAND JURY

Foreperson
Date:

of Grand Jury

VERDICT

Forepersori

Date;

of Petit Jury

DOCKET NO, 2014-68-46-() .85

The State of South Carolina
County of York

COURT OF GENERAL: SESSIONS

SEPTEMBER 15, TERM 2014

i

,Deféridaht’ )

I

hereby appear in my own proper person and plead’
guilty to'the within indictment or fo

THE STATE

ABBDUL OMAR EMMANUEL

Indictment for
CONSPIRACY / CRIMINAL
CONSPIRACY, COMMON LAW
CONSPIRACY DEFINED

SC-Code: § 16-17-:0410
CDR'Code: 0049 -

Defendant

N

o<1



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
INDICTMENT

COUNTY OF YORK

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on September 15, 2014, the Grand

Jurors of York County present upon their oath:

CONSPIRACY / CRIMINAL CONSPIRACY, COMMON LAW CONSPIRACY DEFINED

The defendant, Abbdul Omar Emmanuel did on. or about January 9, 2014 in York
County, willfully, knowingly, and feloniously unite, combine, conspire, confederate, agree
or have tacit understanding with Raobert Johnson and/or Marquise Glover and/or
‘ Quameek White, for the purpose of commiitting the crime of assault and/or other criminal
offenses. All in violation of 16-17-0410, Code of Laws of South Carolina, (1976), as

amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such

Oz

CHRISTOPHER W.-EPTING

case made and provided.
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DOCKET NO. 2014-GS-46-1223

WITNESSES ‘
RHPDStokes The State of South Carolina
County of York
COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
October 9, Term 2014
sgh
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
2013A4620303764 THE STATE
VS.
ACTION OF GRAND JURY ABBDUL OMAR EMMANUEL
Foreperson of Grand Jury
Date:
VERDICT . ,
Indictment for
POINTING/PRESENTING A FIREARM
SC Code: 16-23-410
CDR Code: 122
Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

After be'mg fully advised as to my
legal rights, | hereby waive presentment
to the Grand Jury.

il e 7

Defendant

I .
hereby appearin my own proper person and plead
guilty to the within indictment or to

MM/

Defendant

‘;\ I WWW

Y C{L)PI'S. ANDIGS/

¢Sl
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) INDICTMENT
)
‘COUNTY OF YORK )

~ AtaCourt of General Sessions, convened on Qctober 9, 2014, the Grand Jurors
‘of York County present upon their oath:

POINTING/PRESENTING A FIREARM

The Defendant, Abbdul Omar Emmanuel, did in York County, South-Carolina, on
or about November 27, 2013, paint or present-a firearm at Tina Jackson and/or-Johnny
Lee; Jr., all in violation. of Sectioh 16-23-410 of the Code of Laws. of South Carolina,
(1976, as amended.) This-did occur within the city limits of Rock Hill, South Carolina. |

Against the peace: and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in 'such

case madeand provided. N
‘ A}M@L |
/ } ASSISTANT SOLICITOR

W/




ey DOCKET NO. 2014-Gs46: (1D O3
.o WITNESSES
RHPD\Riley _ The State of South Carolina
County of York.
CQURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
May 29, Term 2014
sgh _

After being fully advised as to my-
legal rights; | hereby waive: presentrnent
to the Grand Jury.

Defendant.

.
hereby appear in my own ;proper person and plead
guilty to the within indictment or to

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER

2014A4620304029

ACTION OF GRAND JURY

THE STATE

vs.

ABBDUL OMAR EMMANUEL

frBded EFnn men

VERDICT
Foreperson of Petit Jury

Date:

Indictment for
CRIMINAL CONSPIRACY

‘SC Code: 16-17-410
CDR:Code: 049

Defendant

val
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) INDICTMENT
) .
COUNTY OF YORK )

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on May 29, 2014, the Grand Jurors of
York County present upon their oath: '

CRIMINAL CONSPIRACY

The Defendant, Abbdul Omar Emmanuel, did in York County, South Carolina, on
or about November 19, 2013, willfully, knowingly, and feloniously unite, combine,
conspire, confederate, agree or have tacit understanding with Robert Johnson, for the
purpose of committing the crime of Attempted Murder or Discharging a Firearm Into an
Occupied Dwelling. All in violation of Section 16-17-410, Code of Laws of South

Carolina, (1976, as amended).

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and confrary to the statute in such
case made and pravided. .

A S

U ASSISTANT SOLICITOR
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WITNESSES

RHPD\Thomas

n

, ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
_2014A4620304015

ACTION OF GRAND JURY

* VERDICT

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

x

DOCKET Nb. . ‘2014-68-46— O 135 O

The State of South Carolina
County of York

COURT OF GENERAL. SESSIONS

May 29, Term 2014

THE STATE

VS.

ABBDUL OMAR EMMANUEL

.Atfter being-fally advised-as tdmy = .

legai rights, | hereby waive presentment
to the Grand Jury.

Defendant

hereby appear in my own proper person and plead
guilty fo the within indictment or to

Defendant

Witness:

Indictment for
ATTEMPTED MURDER

SC Code: 16-3-29
CDR Code: 3410

C.C.C. PLS. ANDGS.

951
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) 4 INDICTMENT

)
COUNTY OF YORK )

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on May 29 2014, the Grand Jurors of
York County present upon their oath:

ATTEMPTED MURDER

- The Defendant, Abbdul Omar Emmanuel, did in York County, South Carolina on
or about December 1 7, 2013, with malice aforethought, either express or implied,
attempt to the Kill the victim, Tavious Truesdale to wit: the defendant did shoot while
chasing the victim, Tavious Truesdale, this occurred in the 800 block of E. Black Street,
Rock Hill, South Caroliné, all with the intent to kill said victim. All in violation of Section
16-03-29 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, {1976, 2010 as amended).

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in»such

case made and provided. /7
A

N ASSISTANT ébf(cﬂga/




[  WITNESSES
RHPD/Thomas

L I

DOCKET NO.  2014-GS-45- ol 6 5}
The State of South Carolina
County of York

e
1

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

May 29, Term 2014

‘ ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
2014A4620304016

ACTION OF GRAND JURY

%49"»'@ F

: éeperson of /and Jury é

Date 5 XY

VERDICT

THE STATE

VS.

ABBDUL OMAR ENIMANUEL

I

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

Indictment for

POSSESSION OF A FIREARM DURING THE
COMMISSION OF A VIOLENT CRIME

SC Code: 16-23-490
CDR Code: 549

— —

_‘Artef bm. 1g rully advtsed as to-miy-

legal rights, | hereby waive oresentment
to the Grand Jury

Defendant

hereby appear in my own proper person and plead
guxlty te the within indictment or to-

Defendant

Witness:

C.C.C. PLS. AND G.S.

85|
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) INDICTMENT
; .
COUNTY OF YORK )

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on May 28, 2014, the Grand Jurors.of
York County present upon their oath:

POSSESSION OF A FIREARM DURING THE COMNISQON OF A VIOLENT
CRIME

The Defendant, Abbdul Omar Emmanuel, did in York County on or about December
17, 2013, while committing the crime of Attempted Murder, a crime of violence, have
in his possession a handgun, all in violation of Section 16-23-480, Code of Laws of
South Carolina, (1976, as amended).

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such

case made and provided. m
WU Say

e ASS|ST}xNT/{é@ACITOR
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RHPD/Thomas

WITNESSES o

DOCKET NO.  2014-GS-46-.()| S 30

The State of South Carolina
County of York

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

Date:

After being fully advised as to my
legal rights, | hereby waive presentment
to the Grand Jury.

Defendant

(
hereby appear in my own proper person and plead
guilty to the within indictment or to

Defendant

Witness:

May 29, Term 2014
In _
‘ ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
2014A4620304017 THE STATE
VS.
L
ACTION OF GRAND JURY ABBDUL OMAR EMMANUE
FTRUE Bitl.
P .
/ éreperson oi‘ /é and Jéry @
Date:_S/R9//¢
VERDICT
indictment for
CARRYING A PISTOL UNLAWFULLY
SC Code: 16-23-20
Foreperson of Petit Jury CDR Code: 044

I

C.C.C. PLS. AND' G.S.

09l



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) INDICTMENT

)
COUNTY OF YORK )

- -At a Court of General Sessions, convened on May 29, 2014, the Grand Jurors of
York County present upon their oath: :

CARRYING A PISTOL UNLAWFULLY

The Defendant, Abbdul Omar Emmanuel, did in York County, South Carolina, on

or about December 17, 2013; unlawfully carry about his person a firearm, described as

follows: a handgun, all in violation of Section 16-23-20, Code of Laws of South Carolina
(1976, as amended). '

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such

case made and provided. p .

~ ASSISTANT-SOQYICHOR
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DOCKET NO. 2014-GS-46- (O (S 23

§ WITNESSES :
RHPD\Thomas The State of South Carolina
County of York
COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
May 29, Term 2014
In
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
2014A4620304018 THE STATE
. VS,
ACTION OF GRAND JURY ABBDUL OMAR EMMANUEL
VERDICT - - -
Indictment for
CRIMINAL CONSPIRACY
SC Code: 16-17-410
Foreperson of Petit Jury CDR Code: 049

Dafe:

After being fully advised as to my
legal rights, | hereby waive presentment
to the Grand Jury. '

Defendant

[
hereby appear in my own proper person and plead
guilty to the within indictment or to

Defendant

Witness:

C.C.C. PLS. AND G.S.

9l



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) INDICTMENT
) ,

COUNTY OF YORK | )

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on May 29, 2014, the Grand Jurors of
York County present upon their oath:

CRIMINAL CONSPIRACY

The Defendant, Abbdul Omar Emmanuel, did in York County, South Carolina, on
or about December 17, 2013, willfully, knowingly, and feloniously unite, combine,
conspire, confederéte, agree or have tacit undersianding with another, for the purpose
of committing the crime of Attempted Murder. All in violation of Section 16-17-410,
Code of Laws of South Carolina, (1976, as amended).

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such

case made and provided. /)/Z (/J %

" ASSIST LICITOR
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RHPD\Philson

WITNESSES

L —
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
2014A4620304123
ACTION OF GRAND JURY
TRUE BiLL
L)

/ 'éperson of Gra : Z

Date: 5’ /dzq/}y‘ i _

VERDICT

DOCKET NO. 2014-6545- O 504

The State of South Carolina
County of York

After being fully advised as to'my. -+ -

" legal rights, I hereby waive presentment

to the Grand Jury.

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

Nay 29, Term 2014

"THE STATE

VS.

ABBDUL OMAR EMMANUEL

Defendant

ol

i
hereby appear in my own proper person and plead
guilty to the within indictment or to

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date;

Indictment for
CRIMINAL CONSPIRACY

SC Code: 16-17-410
CDR Code: 049

|

Defendant

Witness: |

- C.C.C. PLS. AND G.S.
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STAT TEOF "SOUTH CARQLINA) INDICTMENT
_ )
COUNTY OF YORK )

_, At-a Court of Gerieral Sessions, convened on May 28, 2014, the Grand Jurors of
Yerk.County present upon their oath:

CRIMINAL CONSPIRACY

The Defendant; Abbdul Omar Emmanuel, did in York County, Soith Carolina, on

or about November 18, 2013, williully, knowingly, and feloniously" unite, combine,
conspire, confederate, agree or have. tacit understanding with Wali Rhinehart for the
purpose of committing the.crime of Attempted Murder or Discharging a Fitearm Info an
Occupied Dwelling. Al in violation of Section 16-17-410, Code of Laws of South
Carolina, (1976, as amended). | |

Against the peace and dignity of the Sfate and contrary to the statute in such
case made-and provided. ,

U VASSISTANT SOLICITOR



IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

V8. INDICTMENT/CASE#: __ 2014GS4602876

)
York )
ol : )
Abbdul Omar Emmanuel ; A/W#  2014A4620303950

: i i — . Date of Offense: _ 1/9/2014
Race:. BLACK  Sex: M AgeERTHGIED TéUE@gﬁ@pde § :_16:03-0029
——— g Sy .'CDR Code #: _ 3410
Addenen™  TTgbble Road ey = %ﬁ b 92 '
City,State,Zip:  Rock HAll_SC 20730 : '
2 A - S 4
DL#: SID#: Vi @ﬁ%&%&%ﬂﬁﬁm

In disposition of the said indictment comes now the DefendAMEWHIWASESSE  [] CONVICTEDOF or  [XIPLEADS
TO: Assault/ Assault & Battery of a High & Aggravated Nature .

in violation of § 16-03-0600(B)(1) - of the 8.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 3411
(0 NON-VIOLENT [X| VIOLENT [XISERIOUS []MOST SERIOUS [ ]Mandatory GPS(CSC [1§17-25-45
' ' . _ w/minor 1st or Lg '
-The chargeis: [T} AsIndicted, [ JLesser Included Offense, [X]Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. efendant's initials)
The pleais: . []Without Negotiations or Recommendation, [X] Negotiatefi Sentence, Recommendation by the Stat:a./
ATTES?/) - ‘ ' =
[l (e~ B3\ - S 257 oz >3
Epting; Christopher  _~ SCBard ‘' Defendant (" Aomey for Defendant SC Bar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the [0 State Department of Corréctions, [] County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of 2©  daysimenths/years or [] under the Youthfal Offender Act not to exceed years

and/or to pay a fine of $ ; provided that upon the service of . days/months/years and/or payment

of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

p on, which are incorporated by reference.
CONCURRENT or [] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: - .
[T The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code - § .24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections. .5 7 (&
[ The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to 8.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursnant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for 2 person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition,

I;Q/n;?'ears and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
TO . _

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[[JRESTITUTION: [ ] Deferred [ ] Def. Waives Hearing [Tl Ordered PTUP
Total: § plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED 0
[ Setby SCDPPPS . Attend Voc, Rehab, or Job Corp.
— . May serve W/E begining
Recipient: . Substance Abuse Counseling O
*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing O
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) 5 Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 § {00 pmts. of $ __ beginning
g ‘:;;;;g;’g’mwg fs‘:znge’ ool g $ paid to Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 3§ Other: :
Proviso 47:9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 3 :
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce, Funding) $25 $ 35'
§ 14-1-213 (Drirg Court Surcharge) $150 7§
. § 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fec) $50 5
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea § (1 Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $ b - B47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County (if paid in instailments) 3 - during probation.
TOTAL $

20 o ' .
Presiding Judge 35 =g e %

Clerk of Court/ DépW Judge Code; &_\_
Court Reporter:  {_)1 oo Xh oo Sentence Date: -9 ~\ W

SCCA/217 (03/2011)




#F SOUTH CAROLINA ) Ojg ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 167
OF Yok D ; o
| vs. ) INDICTMENT/CASE# 2014G84602876( A )
Abbdul Omar Emmanuel )y AMW# _2014A4620303951 .

e ) Date of Offense: _1/9/2014
¥ Race: BLACK Sex: M | AeCERTHSIED TRUR . §iplode  § : _16:23-0490

DOB: ___SS#: CDR Code#: 0549

Address: . Pebble Road J05HOY =2 BH Gt 62

City,State,Zip:  Rock Hill, SC 29730 o :

DL#: SIO#: DAVID HAMILTEN @EEWW«F&L

*CDL Yes[] No[] CMV Yes['] No[] Hazmat$&ERing COURT

In disposition of the said indictment comes now the D\fgfx R GRRIN:SE [] CONVICTED OF or XJPLEADS

TO Weapons / Possessionof weapon during violent crime, if not also sentenced to life without parole or death

in violationof § 16-23-0490 of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0549 )

1 NON—VIOLENT [J VIOLENT [JSERIOUS  [JMOST SERIOUS [(JMandatory GPS(CSC 18172545
o w/minor 1st or Le t)

The charge is: [ AsIndicted, []Lesser Included Offense, [X]Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)

Thepleais: [ Without Negotiations or Recommendation,

g Negotiated Sentence, Recommendation by the State.
M/ < 442@ =

Defendant (/ﬁafney for Defendant SCREF
[] State Departinent of Corrections, [0 County Detention Center,

T (G

e
Epting, Christopher"W./ %
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the

for a determinate term of J_") .days/menths/yearsor [ ] under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
and/or to pay a fine of $ ; provided that upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment -
of$ : plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probatxon for .

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standa.rd conditions of
_ probation, which are incorporated by reference. .
{1 CONCURRENT or ] ‘CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: . -
[¥The Defendant is to be given credit for ime served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied

by the State Department of Corrections. £ CEDACS
[0 The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

' Pursuant to 18 U S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violatiori of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criniinal
Domestlc Vlolence) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearin or ammunition. .

' SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[:]RESTITUTION: [] Deferred [] Def., Waives Hearing [Jordered PTUP
Total: § ___ plus20%fee: _____§ daysfhours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: ' Obtain GED 0
[0 Set by SCOPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
— May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling O
*Fine; - $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing 0
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) 3 Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) s100  § Q0 . pmts. of § ~_beginning
g1 14-1-21 1(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 $
§ 56.5.2995 (DUT Assessment) s12 5 $ _'___ pald to Public Defender Fund
56-1-286 (DUT Breath Test) $25 8 Other:
Provxso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 §
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 3 95
"8 14-1-213 (Dmg Court Surcharge) $150 $
§ 50-21+ 114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 - § :
§ 56-5-2942(7) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ca _§ [] Appointed PD or appoirted other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 § K- § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County (if paid in insfallments) $ : during probation.
. TOTAL s 150
. Presiding Judge g} l( é\) M
) Clerk of Court/ Deputy Cler Judge Code: &5
Court Reporter: ; Q-5 -1

SCCA/217 (03/2011)

Sentence Date:




) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
York )
Vs, _ ; INDICTMENT/CASE#: 20146846 -2 5% Y4
_Abbdul Omer Emmantel C ) A/WE _2014A4620303952
) Date of Offense 1/9/2014
Ve C%ﬁ jfode § :_1623-0020, 0050(A(2)
)y CDR

Race: BLACK _ Sexx M’

Egd?: . -,_b;ﬂ Rsi# . Code#: 0044

ess: " Pebble Roa 7‘"5Nﬂ¥-’-- '
City,State,Zip: ~_Rock Hill, SC 29730 “" 2 Pﬁ’ - 02 SENTENCE:SHE)
DL#: - SID#: BAVID A m';@;q & J’? "%a@@ FEI\:EAL

*CDL Yes[] No[] CMV Yes[] No[] Hazmaf;{@@}( {Nb
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the B@aﬁa@g@p}waﬁ,s £- [J CONVICTEDOF or - [XJPLEADS

TO: Weapoéns / Unlawful carrying of pistol

in violation of § 116-23- 0020, 0050(A)(2) of the 8.C, Code of Laws, bearing CDR. Code # 0044 .
X NON-VIOLENT [] VIOLENT [JSERIOUS {JMOST SERIOUS * []Mandatory GPS(CSC [1§17-25-45
w/minor st or L, ct)
The charge is: [T} AsIndicted, [TJLesser Included Offense, | Defendant Waives Presentm to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)
Thepleais: _ [7|Without Negotiations or Recommendatmn Negotlate Sentenve Recommendation by the State,
Amsrf’ < %JWZ%
4 et 623 i 5/) 207

Eptingy-Christopher W'W SC Bar# Defendant rﬂﬁmey for Defendant SC Bar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited tothe - [ State Department of Corfections, [ ] County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of ! daystmenths/yearsor  [] under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years

and/or to pay a fine of $ ; provided that upon the service of days/months/years and/or payme payment

of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probatlon, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
%on, which are incorporated by reference.

CONGURRENT or [] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
[~ The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections. er’ 2 Y
[J The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to 8.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a viclation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestxc Violence ) to shlp,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition,

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
DRESTITUTION: [[] Deferred [] Def. Waives Hearlng [ ]Ordered  PTUP
Total: § __ plus 20% fee: : $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: ' Obtain GED '
[ Setby SCDPPPS : ' Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
— : May serve W/E begining
Recipient: : : Substance Abuse Counseling ]
*Fine: ’ $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing 0.
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) 3 Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $too § 100D pmts. of beginning
§14-1-211(A)2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 $ . : .
§ 56-5-2995 (DUT Assessmen) 512 3 $ S paid to Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) . $25 S Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) " $500 §
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $ A5
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 $
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fet_:) $50° - §
§ 56-5-2942(T) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea § ] [T Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $ K § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to-Clerk
3% to County (1fpald in mstallments) $ during probation.
TOTAL $ ' : Z
. Presiding Judge Zzg ( L :
Clerk of Court/: Députy Clerk ! (119 Judge Code: ~
Court Reporter: { U_QJ! Payil Sentence Date: 909§ L@

SCCA/217 (03/2011)
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_#SOUTH CAROLINA 0_9 ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSION
— "~ NTY'OF © York > ) % . _ _
/.rf‘?a.TE ' Vs. - ) INDICTMENT/CASE# _ 2014GS46- £ §%5
Abbdul Omar Emmauuel ) A/WHE  2014A4620303955
 ARA: : Date of Offense; _1/9/2014
Race: BLACK Sex: M CR&HFIEBJRUE fl@i”sg C.Code § :_16-17-0410
DOB: SS#: - g CDR Code #: _ 0049
Address: Pebble Road 20TTHEY 2 PH II)l 02
City,State,Zip:  Rock Hill, SC 29730 T —
DEA Sk | SERTSINRE

*CDL Yes[] No[] CMV Yes[] No[] Hagly RET
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the’ Peferida
TO: Conspiracy / Criminal Consmracy, Common Law conspiracy defmed

[] CONVICTEDOF or  [XPLEADS

in violationof § 16-17-0410 of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0049

X] NON-VIOLENT {1 VIOLENT []SERIOUS [JMOST SERIOUS [JMandatory GPS(CSC [1817-25-45

. . w/minor 1st or ) }
The chargeis: [ ] As Indicted, [T Lesser Included Offense, [R)Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)
Thepleais: ~ []Without Negotiations or Recommendation, [X] Negotiated Sentence, [ Recommendation by the State.

TTEST/ :
ATTEST LA () G % 221 4 __ Een
Epting, Christopher ¥/ %rney. for Defendant SC Bar#

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the [ State Department of Coirections, [] County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of 5/ daysimenths/yearsor  [] under the Youthful Offender Act notto exceed years -
and/or to pay a fine of $ ; provided that upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment

of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probatlon for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of *
probation, which are incorporated by reference.

B CONGURRENT or 7] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: . )
[ The Defendant is to be given credit for time seryed pursuant to 8.C. Code § 24-13-40to be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections. L f?‘ e
[0 The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17—25 -135.

“Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition,

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

[JRESTITUTION: [ ] Deferred [7] Def. Waives Hearing [ ] Ordered  PTUP .

Total: § plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment

Payment Terms: . : Obtain GED 0

(] Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voe. Rehab. or Job Corp.

— : May serve W/E begining

Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling O

*Fine:: $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing -

§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) ‘ $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly

§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 "3 WO pmts. of $ beginning _

§14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surchargs) $100 § : .
'§ '56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) $12 3 $ S paid to Public Defender Fund

§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 7§ Other:

Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 3§

§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce, Funding) $25 $ A5

§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 §

§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) - $50 ~ § .

§ 56-5-2042(7) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea  § [ Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,

Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $ B § 47.12 requires $500 be pald to Clerk

3%to County (if paid in insfallments) 3 during probation.

TOTAL $ 130 _ ’ -2! iz

L - Presiding Judge raids AL <
AXARN AL I 0 OF A Judge Code: SIAST L : .

Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk
Court Reporter: m

Sentence Date: -8~
SCCA/217 (03/2011)



I1 0 OF dDUULIN CARULUNA
/,ﬁ:;Y OF York _}>@JQ

)
) _
/ FaTE Vs, ; * INDICTMENT/CASE#:  2014GS4601223
A ' )

IN LHE CUUKIL Ul GEINLKAL SESSIUNS

Abbdul Omar Emmanuel CA/WH 2013A4620303764

A . Date of Offense 112712013
Race: BLACK Sex: M A . 16-23-0410
I %@gR, e gg R C. Code :
; Dgf : A gEﬁ’i% Code# 0122
: Address: "~ Pebble Road : I - i
City,State,Zip: ~ Rock Hjll. SC 29730 1SH0Y-2 P H l‘ 9'
DL, SID#: MY, )TQN ﬁ@%m&&m

' *CDL Yes[ ] No[] CMV Yes[]] No[] Hazmeﬁ- b »,m: SHRT
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the E@ﬁéﬂq@%@% 88 [] CONVICTED OF or (XIPLEADS
TO: Weapons / Pointing and presenting firearms at a person "

in violation of § 16-23-0410 of the 8.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0122 '
[X] NON-VIOLENT (] VIOLENT []SERIOUS - [JMOST SERIOUS [ JMandatory GPS(CSC []817-25-45
_ w/minor 1st or Lewd Act) -
The chargeis:  [X] As Indicted, [ JLesser Included Offense, [[]Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury, (defendant's initials)
The plea is:_ ithout Negotiations or Recommendation, D Negotiated Sentence wendanon by the State, ~
| 519 AR
olland, Jessica E SC Bar# efendant ey for Defendant: SC Bar#
W FORE, the Defendant is commited to the [J State Department of Correctlons, (] County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of 5— —Aaysfmronths/yearsor [ under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed - years

and/or to pay a fine of § ; provided that upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment

of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

probgtion, which are incorporated by reference. .
%" CONCURRENT or [J CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: .
[4~The Defendant is to be given credit for time se rsuant to S8.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections. gl & 2= Af
[J The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

nyeals and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Paro]e and Pardon Services standard conditions of

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 {Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
DRESTITUTION (] Deferred [] Def. Waives Hearing [ ] Ordered  PTUP
Total: plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: __ : Obtain GED 0
[ Setby SCOPPPS _ Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
— May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling O
*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing ]
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 $ \Q0 pmts. of beginning
§ 14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 "% ; .
5 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) 512 3 §  paidto Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 8 Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) ' $500 3
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $ as
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) 3150 3
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 . § .
8§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea  $ [J Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) 5 8 5 8 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County (if paid in installments) $ during probation.
TOTAL $ 120 '
Presiding Judge @FO’J ~ W&A

Clerk of Court/ Deput CIerk
Court Reporter:
SCCA/217 (03/2011)

Judge Code:

Sentence Date: Q % ~1e
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/Z OF SUU1H LARULLNA . 5 {;}J J
GNTY OF York ) |
/.?TATE ' Vs. ) INDICTMENT/CASE# ___2014GS4601503
Abbdul Omar Emmanuel. )y AMW#: _2014A4620304029

ARA: )  Dateof Offenser _11/19/2013

Race: BLACK Sex: M . 8.C.Code § :_16-17-0410

DOB:. SS#: CDR Code #: 0049

Address: '  Pebble Road

City,State,Zip:  Rock Hill, SC 29730

DL#: SID#:

T GRIGINAL

{1 CONVICTED OF or XIPLEADS

*CDL Yes[[] No[] CMV Yes[]] No[] gIK
In disposition of the said indictment comes ndfig@id{g! e
TO: Conspiracy / Criminal Conspiracy, Common Law conspxracy defined

in violationof § 16-17-0410 ~ ofthe S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0049
X] NON-VIOLENT [J VIOLENT [JSERIOUS [(JMOST SERIOUS [JMandatory GPS(CSC (1§17-25-45
' . ) w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)
The chargeis: [X] AsIndicted, []Lesser Included Offense, [ ]Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)

The plea is: Without Negotiations or Recommendation, k M Negotx;t;i(entence, [] Recommendation by the State.

T Cdn®)

SC Bar# Defendant ttpSmey for Defendant SC Bar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the [[] State Department of Correctlons, [0 County Detention Center,

ifor a determinate term of gj daysimonths/years or [ under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
and/or to pay a fine of § ; provided that upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment

olland, Jessica E

of $ ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

m@()n/t}y'y'ears and subject to South Carolina Depﬁrtment of Peration, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of

probafion, which are incorporated by reference.
CONCURRENT or [J CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
[3~The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by theState Department of Corréctions. £ 37 %’ '
[0 The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[JRESTITUTION: [] Deferred [ | Def. Waives Hearing (JOrdered  PTUP
Total: § plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED B
] Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab, or Job Corp.
— May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling O
*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcoho! testing O
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100  $ \0D pmts. of beginning
§ 14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 3 . .
§ 56:5-2995 (DUI Assessment) 512 3 $§  paidto Public Defender Fund
|§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 5 Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 $
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $ 25
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 $
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50. $
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea  § [[] Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $ [ § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County (if paid in installments) $ during probation,
TOTAL $

> ' N
ab Presiding Judge . . @éw\-

Judge Code: IO

Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk m 8 a D -
Sentence Date: Q-2%-~-1

Court Reporter:  { ) 3 Qg_i
SCCA/217 (03/2011)




